# UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION Washington, D.C. 20549

# **SCHEDULE 14A**

Proxy Statement Pursuant to Section 14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (Amendment No. )  $\,$ 

File	d by the I	Registrant ⊠						
File	d by a Pa	rty other than the Registrant o						
Che	ck the ap	propriate box:						
0	Preliminary Proxy Statement							
0	Confidential, for Use of the Commission Only (as permitted by Rule 14a-6(e)(2))							
X	Definitive Proxy Statement							
0	Definit	ive Additional Materials						
0	Soliciti	ng Material Pursuant to §240.14a-12						
		PHARMATHENE, INC.						
		(Name of Registrant as Specified In Its Charter)						
		(Name of Person(s) Filing Proxy Statement, if other than the Registrant)						
Payı	ment of F	iling Fee (Check the appropriate box):						
$\boxtimes$	No fee	required.						
0	Fee con	mputed on table below per Exchange Act Rules 14a-6(i)(1) and 0-11.  Title of each class of securities to which transaction applies:						
	(2)	Aggregate number of securities to which transaction applies:						
	(3)	Per unit price or other underlying value of transaction computed pursuant to Exchange Act Rule 0-11 (set forth the amount on which the filing fee is calculated and state how it was determined):						
	(4)	Proposed maximum aggregate value of transaction:						
	(5)	Total fee paid:						
0	Fee pa	id previously with preliminary materials.						
Oheck box if any part of the fee is offset as provided by Exchange Act Rule 0-11(a)(2) and identify the filing which the offsetting fee was paid previously. Identify the previous filing by registration statement number, or Form or Schedule and the date of its filing.								
	(1)	Amount Previously Paid:						
	(2)	Form, Schedule or Registration Statement No.:						
	(3)	Filing Party:						



May 14, 2008

# Dear Securityholder:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of PharmAthene, Inc. to be held at the offices of The Bear Stearns Companies, Inc., located at 383 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10179, on Friday, June 13, 2008 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time). Details of the business to be conducted at the Annual Meeting are given in the attached Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and proxy statement. We are also pleased to invite the holders of our 8% convertible notes to attend the Annual Meeting for the purpose of electing their representatives to our Board.

We hope that you will be able to attend the Annual Meeting. Whether or not you attend the Annual Meeting, it is important that your shares or notes be represented and voted at the meeting. Therefore, we urge you to submit your proxy by signing, dating and returning the enclosed proxy card in the envelope provided at your earliest convenience. If you decide to attend the Annual Meeting, you will be able to vote in person, even if you have previously submitted your proxy card.

On behalf of PharmAthene, I would like to express our appreciation for your support and continued interest in the affairs of the Company. We look forward to seeing you at the Annual Meeting.

Sincerely,

Christopher C. Camut Secretary



# NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS TO BE HELD JUNE 13, 2008

#### To our Securityholders:

You are cordially invited to attend the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders (the "Annual Meeting") of PharmAthene, Inc. to be held on Friday, June 13, 2008 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time) at the offices of The Bear Stearns Companies, Inc., located at 383 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10179. The purpose of the Annual Meeting will be to consider the following proposals:

- 1. to amend the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase from seven to eight the maximum number of directors that may serve on the Board of Directors;
- 2. to elect up to eight directors to the Board of Directors for a term of one year;
- 3. to ratify the selection by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008;
- 4. to amend the 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2007 Plan") to increase the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan from 3,500,000 shares to 4,600,000 shares and to add an evergreen provision pursuant to which the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan will increase automatically in each year beginning in 2009 according to certain limits set forth in the 2007 Plan; and
- 5. to transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the Annual Meeting.

You are entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting on the proposal to amend our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, for the election of some of our director nominees, on the proposal to ratify and approve the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, on the proposal to amend our 2007 Plan, and at any adjournments or postponements thereof if you were the holder of record of any shares of our common stock at the close of business on April 25, 2008, the record date for the Annual Meeting fixed by the Board. In addition, if you were the holder of record of our 8% convertible notes at the close of business on April 25, 2008, you are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting on the election of the noteholders' representatives to our Board of Directors.

Our Board of Directors recommends that our stockholders vote FOR each of the proposals. Our stockholders may also be asked to consider and act upon any other business that may properly come before the Annual Meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. The vote of each stockholder and noteholder is important to us. If you do not expect to attend the meeting in person and desire to have your shares represented and voted at the meeting, please fill in, sign, date and promptly return the enclosed proxy card in the accompanying envelope. No postage is necessary if mailed in the United States. Please see the instructions on your proxy card. If you attend the Annual Meeting, you may revoke your proxy and vote in person.

A copy of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, which is not part of the proxy soliciting material, is enclosed. This Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and the accompanying proxy materials are first being mailed out to stockholders on or about May 14, 2008.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

Christopher C. Camut Secretary

Annapolis, Maryland May 14, 2008

# PHARMATHENE, INC.

# Proxy Statement for 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be Held June 13, 2008

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

	Page
General Information and Questions and Answers about the Proxy Materials and Voting	1
Proposal 1—Approval of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation	6
Proposal 2—Election of Directors	8
Corporate Governance; Board of Directors	12
Corporate Governance Guidelines	12
Code of Ethics and Business Conduct	12
Board Meetings	13
Board Committees	13
Director Independence	15
Process for Communicating with Board Members	15
Director Attendance at Annual Meeting	15
Director Compensation	16
Audit Committee Report	17
Executives and Executive Compensation	19
Executives	19
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation	20
Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End	22
Equity Compensation Plan Information	23
Potential Payments Under Termination or Change in Control	23
Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance	32
Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management	32
Proposal 3—Ratification of Independent Auditors	36
Proposal 4—Approval of Amendment to 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan	39
Other Information	48
Annual Report on Form 10-K	48
Key Corporate Governance Documents	48
Stockholder Proposals for 2009 Annual Meeting	48
Householding	48
Appendix A—Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of PharmAthene, Inc.	A-1
Appendix B—PharmAthene, Inc. 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan	B-1

i

PHARMATHENE, INC. One Park Place, Suite 450 Annapolis, MD 21401

Proxy Statement 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be Held June 13, 2008

General Information and Questions and Answers about the Proxy Materials and Voting

#### **Purpose of this Proxy Statement**

This proxy statement is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors of PharmAthene, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("PharmAthene" or the "Company"), for the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of PharmAthene (the "Annual Meeting") to be held on Friday, June 13, 2008, and any adjournments or postponements thereof, for the purposes set forth in the attached Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders and more fully described in this proxy statement. We are also using this proxy statement to solicit proxies on behalf of holders ("Noteholders") of our 8% convertible notes (the "Notes"), in connection with the election of the Noteholders' representatives to our Board (the "Noteholder Directors") at the Annual Meeting. This proxy statement, PharmAthene's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 and the accompanying proxy card (including voting instructions) are first being mailed to Stockholders and Noteholders, on or about May 14, 2008.

#### Time and Place of Annual Meeting

The Annual Meeting will be held on Friday, June 13, 2008 at 10:00 a.m. (Eastern Time) at the offices of The Bear Stearns Companies, Inc., located at 383 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10179.

#### Lists of Stockholders and Noteholders

In accordance with Delaware law, lists of our Stockholders and Noteholders who are entitled to vote at the Annual Meeting will be available for inspection by any stockholder present at the Annual Meeting and, for ten days prior to the Annual Meeting, by any stockholder, for purposes germane to the meeting, at our offices located at One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401 and at the offices of McCarter & English, LLP in New York, NY. Any inspection of these lists prior to the Annual Meeting must be conducted between 9:30 A.M. and 4:30 P.M. (Eastern Time). Please contact our Corporate Secretary before going to conduct any inspection prior to the Annual Meeting.

#### What is Being Voted On?

There are four proposals to be considered and voted upon at the Annual Meeting as follows:

- 1. to amend the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase from seven to eight the maximum number of directors that may serve on the Board of Directors:
- 2. to elect up to eight directors to the Board of Directors for a term of one year;
- 3. to ratify the selection by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008; and
- 4. to amend the 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2007 Plan") to increase the number of subject to the 2007 Plan from 3,500,000 shares and to add an evergreen provision pursuant to which the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan will

increase automatically in each year beginning in 2009 according to certain limits set forth in the 2007 Plan; and

5. to transact such other business as may properly come before the Annual Meeting and any adjournment or postponement of the Annual Meeting.

#### Arrangements Regarding Board Composition and Nomination and Election of Directors

Under our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, for so long as at least 30% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes remains outstanding (and notwithstanding the existence of less than 3 Noteholders at any given time), (a) the Company shall maintain a Board of Directors consisting of no more than seven members and each Board Committee shall have no more than three members, and (b) three members of the Board of Directors (the "Noteholder Directors") shall be nominated and elected by the Noteholders representing two-thirds of the outstanding principal amount of the Notes, voting as a separate class. Presently, at least 30% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes remains outstanding. Consent is required from at least two-thirds of the outstanding principal amount of the Notes to amend or change the above provisions in accordance with the Notes and the Note Exchange Agreement, dated August 3, 2007, by and among the Company (f/k/a Healthcare Acquisition Corp.), PharmAthene, Inc. (n/k/a PharmAthene US Corporation) and the Company's Noteholders (the "Note Exchange Agreement") entered into in connection with the merger consummated on August 3, 2007. The Noteholders consented to the expansion of the Board of Directors from seven to eight members as contemplated under Proposal 1 by written consent dated April 30, 2008. James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Elizabeth Czerepak and Steven St. Peter are the nominees for election by the Noteholders (collectively, the "Noteholder Director Nominees").

With the exception of the Noteholder Director Nominees, our directors are elected by the holders of our common stock. John Pappajohn, David P. Wright, Joel McCleary, John Gill and Derace L. Schaffer, M.D. are the nominees for election by the Stockholders (the "Stockholder Director Nominees"). In the event that Proposal 1 is not approved, Dr. Schaffer will not be a director nominee.

# Who Can Vote and On Which Proposals May I Vote?

If you owned any shares of our common stock on April 25, 2008, as reflected in our stock register, or if you owned any of our Notes on April 25, 2008, as reflected in our Notes register, you may vote at the Annual Meeting on the following matters:

Securities Held of Record on April 25, 2008	Proposals on Which You May Vote				
Common Stock	<ul> <li>Proposal 1—Approval of the Amendment of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation</li> <li>Proposal 2—Stockholder Director Nominees only</li> <li>Proposal 3—Approval of the Appointment of Ernst &amp; Young LLP</li> <li>Proposal 4—Approval of the Amendment of our 2007 Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan</li> </ul>				
Notes	Proposal 2—Noteholder Director Nominees only				

#### What Number of Shares and Notes are Outstanding?

**Common Stock.** At the close of business on April 25, 2008, there were 22,087,121 shares of common stock outstanding. Each share of common stock is entitled to one vote.

**Notes.** At the close of business on April 25, 2008, the aggregate principal amount of the Notes outstanding was \$12,312,831.08. In the election for the Noteholder Director Nominees, each

Noteholder is entitled to one vote for each \$10.00 in aggregate principal amount of outstanding Notes he or she holds.

#### Who is a Record Holder?

**Stockholders.** You may own common stock either (1) directly in your name, in which case you are the record holder of such shares, or (2) indirectly through a broker, bank or other nominee, in which case such nominee is the record holder and your shares are referred to as being held in "street name."

If your shares are registered directly in your name, we are sending these proxy materials directly to you. If the record holder of your shares is a broker, bank or other nominee, you will receive proxy materials from such record holder.

**Noteholders.** You are the record holder of Notes directly held in your name or by your registered assigns.

We are sending these proxy materials directly to you.

#### What is a Quorum?

A quorum is the number of shares that must be represented in person or by proxy in order for business to be transacted at the Annual Meeting. A quorum will be present at the Annual Meeting if a majority of the shares of our common stock outstanding as of the record date are present in person or by proxy. Abstentions and broker non-votes will count as present for the purpose of establishing a quorum. If a quorum is not present, a majority of the shares present at the Annual Meeting may adjourn the Annual Meeting to another date.

#### What are "Broker Non-Votes"?

Broker non-votes occur when a beneficial owner of shares held in "street name" does not give instructions to the broker, bank or nominee holding the shares as to how to vote on matters deemed "non-routine." Generally, if shares are held in street name, the beneficial owner of the shares is entitled to give voting instructions to the broker, bank or nominee holding the shares. If the beneficial owner does not provide voting instructions, the broker, bank or nominee can still vote the shares with respect to matters that are considered to be "routine," but not with respect to "non-routine" matters. The amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company is a non-routine matter.

#### How Do I Vote?

#### **Record Holders:**

You may vote in person at the Annual Meeting or you may give us your proxy. We recommend you vote by proxy even if you plan to attend the Annual Meeting—you can always change your vote at the Annual Meeting. Our Noteholders may vote in person at the Annual Meeting or you may vote by signing and returning the enclosed proxy card.

# Shares and Notes Held by Brokers, Banks or Other Nominees:

If your shares or Notes are held by a broker, bank or other nominee, you will receive instructions from such nominee that you must follow in order to have your shares and Notes voted.

If you plan to attend the Annual Meeting and vote in person, you will need to contact the broker, bank or other nominee to obtain evidence of your ownership of common stock and/or Notes as of April 25, 2008.

If you hold your shares through a broker, your shares may be voted even if you do not vote or attend the Annual Meeting. Under the rules of the American Stock Exchange ("Amex"), member brokers who do not receive instructions from beneficial owners will be allowed to vote on the election of directors.

If you hold your shares in "street name," your broker, bank or other nominee cannot vote your shares with respect to certain proposals without specific instructions from you. If you do not provide instructions with your proxy, your broker, bank or other nominee may deliver a proxy card expressly indicating that it is NOT voting your shares; this indication that a broker, bank or other nominee is not voting your shares is referred to as a "broker non-vote." Broker non-votes will be counted for the purpose of determining the existence of a quorum but will not count for purposes of determining the number of votes cast at the Annual Meeting. You should instruct your broker, bank or other nominee to vote your shares in accordance with directions that you provide.

The method by which you vote will in no way limit your right to vote at the Annual Meeting if you later decide to attend in person.

#### How Are My Shares of Common Stock Voted If I Give You My Proxy?

If you give us your proxy to vote your shares of common stock, we will be authorized to vote your shares of common stock, but only in the manner you direct. You may direct us to vote for all, some or none of the Stockholder Director Nominees. You may also direct us to vote your shares of common stock for or against the proposal to ratify and approve the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, for or against the proposal to amend our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, and for or against the proposal to amend our 2007 Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan. You may also abstain from voting.

If you give us your proxy to vote your shares of common stock and do not withhold authority to vote for the election of any of the Stockholder Director Nominees, all of your shares of common stock will be voted for the election of each Stockholder Director Nominee. If you withhold authority to vote your shares of common stock for any Stockholder Director Nominee, none of your shares of common stock will be voted for that candidate, but all of your shares of common stock will be voted for the election of each Stockholder Director Nominee for whom you have not withheld authority to vote.

As to the other proposals, if you give us your proxy to vote your shares of common stock but do not specify how you want your shares voted, your shares of common stock will be voted in favor of the proposal to amend our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, in favor of each of the Stockholder Director Nominees, in favor of the proposal to ratify and approve the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as our independent registered accounting firm for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008, and in favor of the proposal to amend our 2007 Long Term Incentive Compensation Plan.

If you give us your proxy to vote your shares of common stock and any additional business properly comes before our Stockholders for a vote at the Annual Meeting, the persons named in the enclosed proxy card will vote your shares of common stock on those matters as instructed by our Board or, in the absence of any express instructions, in accordance with their own best judgment. As of the date of this proxy statement, we were not aware of any other matter to be raised at the Annual Meeting.

# How Are My Notes Voted If I Give You My Proxy?

If you give us your proxy to vote your Notes, we will be authorized to vote your Notes, but only in the manner you direct. You may direct us to vote for or against the Noteholder Director Nominees, or

abstain from voting. If you give us your proxy but do not specify how you want your Notes voted, your Notes will be voted for the election of the Noteholder Director Nominees.

#### How Can I Revoke My Proxy or Change My Vote?

You can revoke your proxy at any time before it is exercised by timely delivery of a properly executed, later-dated proxy (by any method available for giving your original proxy), by sending us a written notice of your desire to revoke your proxy at the following address: PharmAthene, Inc., One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401, c/o Corporate Secretary, or by voting in person at the meeting. However, your proxy will not automatically be revoked merely because you attend the Annual Meeting.

#### What Happens if a Nominee Becomes Unavailable?

If any of our director candidates becomes unavailable for any reason before the election, we may reduce the number of directors serving on our Board or a substitute candidate may be designated. We have no reason to believe that any of our director candidates will be unavailable. If a substitute candidate is designated for any of the Noteholder Director Nominees or the Stockholder Director Nominees, the persons named in the enclosed proxy card will note your shares for such substitute if they are instructed to do so by our Board or, if our Board does not do so, in accordance with their own best judgment. If a substitute candidate is designated for the Noteholder Directors Nominee, the person named in the enclosed proxy card will vote your Notes for such substitute if they are instructed to do so by the trustee for the Notes or, if the Trustee does not do so, they will abstain from voting.

#### Why Did I Receive More Than One Proxy Card?

You may receive more than one proxy card depending on how you hold your shares or Notes and the types of shares or Notes you own. If you hold your shares or Notes through someone else, such as a broker or a bank, you may receive materials from them asking you how you want your shares or Notes voted.

#### Who Will Pay the Expenses of Proxy Distribution?

The Company will pay the expenses of the preparation of the proxy materials and the solicitation of proxies. Proxies may be solicited on behalf of the Company by directors, officers or employees of the company, who will receive no additional compensation for soliciting, in person or by telephone, e-mail or facsimile or other electronic means. In accordance with the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") and the Amex, we will reimburse brokerage firms and other custodians, nominees and fiduciaries for their expenses incurred in sending proxies and proxy materials to beneficial owners of the Company's common stock.

#### Who Can Help Answer My Questions?

If you have questions about any of the proposals, you may write or call PharmAthene, Inc. at One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401, (410) 269-2600, Attention: Christopher C. Camut.

You may also obtain additional information about PharmAthene from documents filed with the SEC by following the instructions in the section entitled "Other Information."

# Other Business

Our Board of Directors knows of no other matters to be presented for stockholder action at the Annual Meeting. If other matters are properly brought before the Annual Meeting, the persons named as proxies in the accompanying proxy card intend to vote the shares represented by them in accordance with their best judgment or as recommended by the Board.

#### PROPOSAL 1

# Approval of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to Increase from Seven to Eight the Maximum Number of Directors that May Serve on the Board

General

PharmAthene proposes to amend our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase from seven to eight the maximum number of directors that may serve on the Board of Directors for so long as at least 30% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes remains outstanding (the "Proposed Charter Amendment"). Currently, since at least 30% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes remains outstanding, our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation requires the Company to maintain a Board of Directors consisting of no more than seven members. Nonetheless, the Company's Bylaws provide that the number of directors constituting the entire Board shall be not less than one nor more than nine as determined by resolution of the Board.

The Board of Directors regularly reviews the Company's corporate governance policies and procedures, including, through the Governance and Nominating Committee, an evaluation of the Board's size and composition. Through this review, the Board determined that it would be in the best interests of the Company and its stockholders to increase the size of the Board to give the Board more flexibility to add selected talents and skills through additional members from time to time and to allow greater continuity on the Board during periods of change. As a result, the Board solicited the consent of the Noteholders on a proposal to amend the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase the maximum number of directors that may serve from seven to eight. On April 30, 2008 the Board received consent of at least two-thirds of the outstanding principal amount of the Notes and adopted a resolution to amend Paragraph A of Article Sixth of the Company's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase from seven to eight the maximum number of directors that may serve on the Board for so long as at least 30% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes remains outstanding.

The Board believes that the Company's directors should possess the breadth and depth of experience and skills necessary for proper oversight of the Company's affairs. In addition to having the ability to expand the Board to include directors with different experiences, backgrounds and skills, the Board believes that the amendment is consistent with, and will support, the Board's commitment to comply with its oversight responsibilities, the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and the corporate governance requirements of the Amex. Currently, our Board is comprised of a majority of independent directors, all of whom are the sole members of each of the standing Board Committees, and the Board, and each of the standing Board Committees, will remain comprised of a majority of independent directors if this proposal is approved by the Stockholders (see "Director Independence" below). If the Proposed Charter Amendment is approved and the number of directors were increased, the important work of the Board could be spread among a larger number of directors. The Proposed Charter Amendment will also facilitate the Company's ability to address and meet the evolving governance standards and new rules, regulations and standards of the SEC and Amex that impose additional obligations and requirements and thereby may require an expanded Board. If the Proposed Charter Amendment is approved, Paragraph A of Article Sixth of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation will be replaced in its entirety with the following:

"A. the Corporation shall maintain a Board of Directors consisting of no more than eight (8) individuals and each committee of the Board of Directors shall have no more than three (3) members;"

If approved by our Stockholders, the Proposed Charter Amendment will become effective upon filing of an appropriate certificate with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware in the form attached hereto as *Appendix A*.

As discussed in Proposal 2, upon the recommendation of the Governance and Nominating Committee, the Board has recommended for election to the newly created vacancy, Derace L. Schaffer, M.D., who previously served as a director, to serve until the next annual meeting.

# **Required Vote**

Each share of our common stock has the right to cast one vote on the Proposed Charter Amendment. Ratification and approval of the Proposed Charter Amendment requires the favorable vote of a majority of the voting power of the shares of our common stock that are entitled to vote on the Proposed Charter Amendment. As a result, abstentions from voting on the Proposed Charter Amendment and broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote against the Proposed Charter Amendment.

# Recommendation

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE APPROVAL OF THE PROPOSED CHARTER AMENDMENT.

#### PROPOSAL 2

#### **Election of Directors**

PharmAthene's directors are elected at each Annual Meeting of Stockholders and hold office for a one-year term or until their successors have been elected and qualified. Currently, as discussed above under Proposal 1 and under "Arrangements Regarding Board Composition and Nomination and Election of Directors," since at least 30% of the aggregate principal amount of the Notes remains outstanding, our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation requires the Company to maintain a Board consisting of no more than seven members. Nonetheless, the Company's Bylaws provide that the number of directors constituting the entire Board shall be not less than one nor more than nine as determined by resolution of the Board. As discussed in Proposal 1, our Board has obtained the consent of the Noteholders to increase the number of directors comprising the Board to eight directors and our Board recommends that our Stockholders vote for the Proposed Charter Amendment.

If Proposal 1 is approved by a majority of the Stockholders resulting in our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation allowing our Board to be comprised of eight members, then eight directors will be elected at this Annual Meeting, five candidates nominated by the Board and elected by the Stockholders (the "Stockholder Director Nominees") and three candidates nominated and elected by the Noteholders (the "Noteholder Director Nominees"). If Proposal 1 is not approved by the Stockholders, then only seven directors will be elected at this Annual Meeting, four Stockholder Director Nominees and three Noteholder Director Nominees. The Board has nominated as Stockholder Director Nominees, John Pappajohn, David P. Wright, Joel McCleary, John Gill and Derace L. Schaffer, M.D. to serve for a one year term expiring at our 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. Dr. Schaffer will not be a Stockholder Director Nominee if Proposal 1 is not approved. The Noteholders have nominated as Noteholder Director Nominees, James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Elizabeth Czerepak and Steven St. Peter (together, the "Noteholder Director Nominees") to serve for a one year term expiring at our 2009 Annual Meeting (collectively, the Stockholder Director Nominees and Noteholder Director Nominees constitute the "Director Nominees" rindividually a "Director Nominees"). All Director Nominees, with the exception of Derace L. Schaffer, M.D., who formerly served as a director, are currently directors of PharmAthene. All Director Nominees have indicated to the Company that he or she will serve if elected. We do not anticipate that any Director Nominee will be unable to stand for election, but if that happens, a Stockholder's proxy will be voted in favor of another Noteholder Director nominated by the Noteholders.

As discussed under Proposal 1 above and under "Arrangements Regarding Board Composition and Nomination and Election of Directors," the Noteholders voting separately as a class, are currently entitled to elect three of our directors, and all of our remaining directors are elected by the holders of our common stock, voting separately as a single class. The procedures for these separate votes by our Stockholders and Noteholders, together with information about the candidates for the relevant election, is presented below under the headings "Stockholder Director Nominees" and "Noteholder Director Nominees," respectively.

# **Stockholder Director Nominees**

Set forth below is information regarding each Stockholder Director Nominee.

Name	Age	Position
John Pappajohn	79	Chairman of the Board
David P. Wright	60	President and Chief Executive Officer and
		Director
Joel McCleary*	59	Director
John Gill*	56	Director
Derace L. Schaffer, M.D.	60	Director

<sup>\*</sup> Independent Director.

**John Pappajohn, 79.** Mr. Pappajohn has served as the Company's Chairman since April 2005 and was the Company's secretary from April 2005 to August 3, 2007. Since 1969, Mr. Pappajohn has been the President and principal stockholder of Equity Dynamics, Inc., a financial consulting firm, and the sole owner of Pappajohn Capital Resources, a venture capital firm. Mr. Pappajohn has been an active private equity investor in healthcare companies for more than 30 years and has served as a director of more than 40 public companies. Mr. Pappajohn has been a founder in several public healthcare companies such as Caremark Rx, Inc., Quantum Health Resources, and Radiologix, Inc. Mr. Pappajohn received his Bachelor of Arts degree from the University of Iowa. Mr. Pappajohn also serves as a director of the following public companies: Allion Healthcare, Inc., American CareSource Holdings, Inc., CareGuide, Inc., MC Informatics, Inc., ConMed Health Management, Inc. and Spectrasciences, Inc.

**David P. Wright, 60.** Mr. Wright has served as a member of the Board since August 3, 2007 and, from July 2003 to August 3, 2007, was President and Chief Executive Officer of what, prior to the merger, was the privately-held PharmAthene, Inc. and is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. Prior to joining the Company, and during 2003, Mr. Wright served as President and Chief Operating Officer of GenVec Inc, and previously, from 2001 to 2003, as President and Chief Business Officer of Guilford Pharmaceuticals. Mr. Wright served as Executive Vice President of MedImmune, Inc. from 1990 to 2000. Prior to serving at MedImmune, he held various marketing and sales positions at pharmaceutical companies including SmithKline and French Laboratories, G.D. Searle, and Glaxo. Mr. Wright received a Master's degree from the University of South Florida. Mr. Wright currently serves as a director of Achillon, Inc.

**Joel McCleary, 59.** Mr. McCleary has served as a member of the Board since August 3, 2007 and, from inception to August 3, 2007, was Chairman of the Board of what, prior to the merger, was the privately-held PharmAthene, Inc. and is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. Mr. McCleary is founding member of Four Seasons Ventures LLC founded in 2005. Prior to 2005, Mr. McCleary has served as a White House Aide, Treasurer of the Democratic Party, and President of the Sawyer—Miller Group International and President of the Institute for Asian Democracy. He has served as a consultant to the Department of State. He is a co-founder and board member of Raydiance Inc. and is also a co-founder of Drinks that Work Inc. He serves on the Harvard Medical School's board of advisors and is an advisor to the Center for Biosecurity of the University of Pittsburgh Medical Center. Mr. McCleary received a Bachelor of Arts degree from Harvard University.

**John Gill, 56.** Mr. Gill has served as a member of the Board since August 3, 2007 and from February 2004 to August 3, 2007 served as a member of the Board of Directors and as Chairman of the Audit Committee of what, prior to the merger, was the privately-held PharmAthene, Inc. and is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. Mr. Gill is currently the President, Chief Executive Officer and a Director of TetraLogic Pharmaceuticals Corporation, a private

biopharmaceutical company, and has served in these positions since 2004. He is also an advisor or director of other private companies and non-profit community organizations. Mr. Gill has previously held positions at 3-Dimensional Pharmaceuticals and SmithKline Beecham. Mr. Gill received a Bachelor of Arts degree from Rutgers University.

Derace L. Schaffer, M.D., 60 (a nominee only if Proposal 1 is approved by a majority of the Stockholders). Dr. Schaffer previously served as our Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company from April 2005 to August 3, 2007. Dr. Schaffer is the founder and Chief Executive Officer of The Lan Group, a venture capital firm specializing in healthcare and high technology investments. He has served as Chairman of several healthcare companies including, Radiologix, Inc when it was private and he has been an active co-investor with Mr. Pappajohn for more than fifteen years on a variety of healthcare companies; they co-founded Allion Healthcare and Radiologix, both of which are public companies. In addition, Mr. Pappajohn and Dr. Schaffer have worked together on many private healthcare companies, such as Logisticare, Inc. and Source Medical Inc. Dr. Schaffer served as Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board of Ide Imaging Group, P.C. from 1980 to 2001. Dr. Schaffer has served as a director on many healthcare boards of directors including several health systems and more than ten healthcare services and technology companies. Dr. Schaffer received his postgraduate radiology training at Harvard Medical School and Massachusetts General Hospital, where he served as Chief Resident. Dr. Schaffer currently is also a Clinical Professor of Radiology at Weill Cornell Medical College. He also serves as a director of the following public companies: Allion Healthcare, Inc., American CareSource Holdings, Inc., and CareGuide, Inc.

#### Who May Vote

If you owned any shares of our common stock on April 25, 2008, as reflected in our stock register, you may vote in the election for the Stockholder Director Nominees. Our Notes do not vote in the election for the Stockholder Director Nominees.

#### **Votes Required**

Each share of our common stock has the right to cast one vote for each of the Stockholder Director Nominees. A Stockholder Director Nominee is elected to our Board if he receives the favorable vote of a plurality of the votes cast by the shares of our common stock that are entitled to vote and are present at the Annual Meeting, either in person or by proxy. Under this format, abstentions and broker non-votes will not affect the outcome of the election.

#### Recommendation

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE ELECTION TO OUR BOARD OF EACH OF JOHN PAPPAJOHN, DAVID P. WRIGHT, JOEL MCCLEARY, JOHN GILL AND DERACE L. SCHAFFER, M.D.

#### **Noteholder Director Nominees**

Set forth below is information regarding each Noteholder Director Nominee.

Name	Age	Position
James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D.*	69	Director
Elizabeth Czerepak*	52	Director
Steven St. Peter*	41	Director

<sup>\*</sup> Independent Director.

James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D., 69. Dr. Cavanaugh has served as a member of the Board since August 3, 2007 and has been a Managing Director of HealthCare Ventures LLC since 1989. Prior to 1987, Dr. Cavanaugh served as President of SmithKline and French Laboratories U.S., Inc., from March 1985 to February 1989 and as President of SmithKline Clinical Laboratories from 1981 to 1985. Prior thereto, Dr. Cavanaugh was the President of Allergan International, a specialty eye care company. Prior to his industry experience, Dr. Cavanaugh was Deputy Assistant to the President for Domestic Affairs and Deputy Chief of the White House Staff. Before his White House tour, he served as Deputy Assistant Secretary for Health and Scientific Affairs in the U.S. Department of Health, Education and Welfare and as Special Assistant to the Surgeon General of the U.S. Public Health Service. He was a Founding Director of the Marine National Bank in Santa Ana, California. Dr. Cavanaugh holds a Doctorate and a Master's degree from the University of Iowa and a Bachelor of Science degree from Fairleigh Dickinson University. In addition to serving on the boards of directors of several privately held health care and biotechnology companies, Dr. Cavanaugh currently serves as Trustee Emeritus of the California College of Medicine. He has previously served on the Board of Directors of the National Venture Capital Association, the Pharmaceutical Research and Manufacturers Association, Unihealth America, the Proprietary Association and on the Board of Trustees of the National Center for Genome Resources. Dr. Cavanaugh currently serves as a member of the Board of Directors of Shire Pharmaceuticals Group PLC (non-executive Chairman), Diversa Corp. (Chairman), MedImmune, Inc. and Advancis Pharmaceutical Corporation.

Elizabeth Czerepak, 52. Ms. Czerepak has served as a member of the Board since August 3, 2007, from October 2004 through August 3, 2007, was a member of the Board of what, prior to the merger, was the privately-held PharmAthene, Inc. and is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. She was also a founder of Bear Stearns Health Innoventures, LLC and has been a member of Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Management L.L.C., the general partner of the funds comprising the Bear Stearns Health Innoventures group, since its inception in April 2001 through March 2008. Prior to joining Bear Stearns Health Innoventures, Ms. Czerepak was vice president of business development and a member of the executive board at BASF Pharma/Knoll Pharmaceutical Co. from 1995 through 2001. From 1987 to 1995, Ms. Czerepak served in various senior positions at Hoffmann-La Roche, responsible for licensing, acquisitions, financial analysis and strategic planning. Ms. Czerepak also established an internal venture vehicle for Hoffmann-La Roche to facilitate start-up companies. Ms. Czerepak began her pharmaceutical career at Merck in 1982 where she led the development of a simulation-based model for comprehensive research and development strategic planning. She was an instructor in the MBA program at Fairleigh Dickinson University, and holds a Bachelor of Arts degree, magna cum laude, from Marshall University and a Masters in Business Administration degree in finance from Rutgers University. She is NASD registered and currently serves on the Board of Directors of Affymax, Inc.

Steven St. Peter, M.D. 41. Dr. St. Peter has served as a member of the Board since August 3, 2007 and from October 2004 to August 3, 2007, was a member of the Board of what, prior to the merger, was the privately-held PharmAthene, Inc. and is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. Dr. St. Peter joined MPM Asset Management LLC as a principal in 2004 and became a general partner in 2005. Prior to joining MPM, from 2001 to 2003, he was a principal at Apax Partners and from 1999 to 2001, he was a senior associate at The Carlyle Group. His investment scope has included both venture and buyout transactions across the medical technology and biopharmaceutical industries. Dr. St. Peter is board certified in internal medicine and was previously an assistant clinical professor of Medicine at Columbia University. He completed his Doctor of Medicine at Washington University. Prior to his medical training, he was an investment banker at Merrill Lynch. He is also a director of Omrix Biopharmaceuticals, Helicos BioSciences Corporation and Syndax Pharmaceuticals, Inc.

#### Who May Vote

If you owned any of our Notes on April 25, 2008, as reflected in our Note register, you may vote in the election for the Noteholder Director Nominees. Our shares of common stock do not vote in the election for the Noteholder Director Nominees.

#### **Votes Required**

In the election for the Noteholder Director Nominees, each Noteholder is entitled to one vote for each \$10.00 in aggregate principal amount of outstanding Notes he or she holds. The Noteholder Director Nominees are elected to our Board if he or she receives the favorable vote of at least two-thirds of the outstanding principal amount of the Notes, either in person or by proxy, voting as a separate class. Under this format, abstentions and broker non-votes will affect the outcome of the election.

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE NOTEHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE ELECTION TO OUR BOARD OF EACH OF JAMES H. CAVANAUGH, PH.D., ELIZABETH CZEREPAK AND STEVEN ST. PETER.

#### Corporate Governance; Board of Directors

After the consummation of our merger with the formerly privately-held PharmAthene, Inc. (which is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation) on August 3, 2007, and as previously disclosed, a number of changes were made to the composition of our Board of Directors to reflect the addition of an operating company. Effective upon the closing of the merger, Messrs. Matthew P. Kinley, Edward B. Berger, Wayne A. Schellhammer and Derace L. Schaffer resigned as directors. At the same time, each of Messrs. David P. Wright, James Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Joel McCleary, John Gill, Steven St. Peter, M.D., Derace L. Schaffer, M.D., and Ms. Elizabeth Czerepak were appointed as directors of the Company, to serve together with the Company's continuing director, John Pappajohn. In addition, after the consummation of the merger, the Company's committees were reconstituted as described below.

#### **Corporate Governance Guidelines**

Pursuant to the Delaware General Corporation Law and the Company's Bylaws, the Company's business, property and affairs are managed by or under the direction of the Board of Directors. Members of the Board are kept informed of the Company's business through discussions with the Chief Executive Officer and other officers, by reviewing materials provided to them and by participating in meetings of the Board and its committees. We currently have seven members on our Board, all of whom are standing for re-election.

#### **Code of Ethics and Business Conduct**

PharmAthene has a Code of Ethics and Business Conduct that applies to all directors, officers and employees, which can be found on our website, www.pharmathene.com, under the heading "Investor Relations" (see "Corporate Governance Information"—"Code of Ethics and Business Conduct") or by writing to PharmAthene, Inc., One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401, c/o Corporate Secretary. All of our directors, officers and employees are expected to be familiar with the Code and to adhere to those principles and procedures set forth in the Code that apply to them. The Company will post any amendments to the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct, as well as any waivers that are required to be disclosed by the rules of either the SEC or the Amex, on the Company's web site.

#### **Board Meetings**

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, the Board held 8 meetings and the Committees held a total of 11 meetings. Each incumbent director attended more than 75% of the total number of meetings of the Board and the Board Committees of which he or she was a member during the period he or she served as a director in fiscal year 2007. The Board of Directors met in executive session on four occasions in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.

#### **Board Committees**

The Board currently has the following committees: Audit, Governance and Nominating, Compensation and Government Affairs. Each Committee consists entirely of independent, non-employee directors (see "Director Independence" below). The charter of each Board Committee (other than the Governmental Affairs Committee which does not currently have a charter) is available free of charge on our website, www.pharmathene.com, under the heading "Investor Relations" (see "Corporate Governance Information"—"Audit Committee Charter," "Compensation Committee Charter" and "Governance and Nominating Committee Charter") or by writing to PharmAthene, Inc., One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401, c/o Corporate Secretary.

The following table below sets forth the Committees, current membership of each Committee and the number of Committee meetings held in 2007.

		Governance and		Government
Name	Audit	Nominating	Compensation	Affairs
Joel McCleary			X*	X*
John Gill	X		X	
James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D.	X	X*		X
Elizabeth Czerepak	X	X		
Steven St. Peter		X	X	
David P. Wright				X
Total 2007 Meetings	6	1	4	0**

Committee Chairperson

The primary functions of each of the Board Committees are described below.

**Audit Committee.** The primary functions of the Audit Committee are to: review the professional services and independence of our independent registered public accounting firm and our accounts, procedures and internal controls; appoint (subject to stockholder approval) the firm selected to be our independent registered public accounting firm; review and approve the scope of the annual audit; review and evaluate with the independent public accounting firm our annual audit and annual consolidated financial statements; review with management the status of internal accounting controls; evaluate problem areas having a potential financial impact on us that may be brought to the Audit Committee's attention by management, the independent registered public accounting firm or the Board of Directors; and evaluate all of our public financial reporting documents.

The independent directors we appoint to our Audit Committee will each be an independent member of our Board, as defined by the rules of the Amex and the SEC. Each member of our Audit Committee will be financially literate under the current listing standards of the Amex, and our Board has determined that John Gill qualifies as an "audit committee financial expert," as such term is defined by SEC rules. See page 15 for the Audit Committee Report.

<sup>\*\*</sup> Recently established

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the Noteholders have the right to have two persons out of the three persons on the Audit Committee for as long as at least 30% of the original principal amount of the Notes remains outstanding.

Governance and Nominating Committee. The primary functions of the Governance and Nominating Committee are to: review and make recommendations on the range of skills and expertise which should be represented on the Board, and the eligibility criteria for individual Board and Committee membership; review and recommend to the Board the appropriate structure of the Board; identify individuals qualified to become Board members and recommend to the Board the nominees for election to the Board at the next Annual Meeting of Stockholders; implement a policy and procedures with regard to consideration of any director candidate recommended by Stockholders; retain and terminate any search firm to be used to identify director candidates, and to approve the search firm, fees and other retention terms; review and recommend to the Board the appropriate structure of Board Committees, Committee assignments and the Board Committee chairman; and review and reassess the adequacy of the Audit Committee charter and recommend any proposed changes to the Board for approval.

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the Noteholders have the right to have two persons out of the three persons on the Governance and Nominating Committee for as long as at least 30% of the original principal amount of the Notes remains outstanding.

The guidelines for selecting nominees, which are specified in the Governance and Nominating Committee charter, generally provide that persons to be nominated should be actively engaged in business endeavors, have an understanding of financial statements, corporate budgeting and capital structure, be familiar with the requirements of a publicly traded company, be familiar with industries relevant to our business endeavors, be willing to devote significant time to the oversight duties of the Board of Directors of a public company, and be able to promote a diversity of views based on the person's education, experience and professional employment. The Governance and Nominating Committee evaluates each individual in the context of the board as a whole, with the objective of recommending a group of persons that can best implement our business plan, perpetuate our business and represent stockholder interests. The Governance and Nominating Committee may require certain skills or attributes, such as financial or accounting experience, to meet specific board needs that arise from time to time. The Governance and Nominating Committee does not distinguish among nominees recommended by Stockholders and other persons.

Compensation Committee. The Company's executive compensation program is administered by the Compensation Committee. Each member of the Committee qualifies as an outside director within the meaning of Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Internal Revenue Code"). The primary functions of the Compensation Committee are to: consider, recommend, oversee and implement executive compensation plans, policies and programs; review the performance and determine the compensation of our executive officers and directors, including the negotiation of any employment agreements with such persons, oversight and administration of the 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2007 Plan") and the grant of options and awards under the 2007 Plan. Pursuant to Section 805 of the Amex Company Guide, compensation of our Chief Executive Officer is determined, or recommended to the Board for determination, by the Compensation Committee comprised solely of independent directors. The Chief Executive Officer is not present during voting or deliberations. Compensation for all other officers is determined, or recommended to the Board for determination, by the Compensation Committee comprised solely of independent directors.

Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, the Noteholders have the right to have two persons out of the three persons on the Compensation Committee for as long as at least 30% of the original principal amount of the Notes remains outstanding.

**Government Affairs Committee.** The primary functions of the Government Affairs Committee are to: oversee and review the status of government initiatives relating to funding and appropriations for the purchase of therapeutics and prophylactics for biological and chemical weapons and other threats to the population and to advise the Board on other governmental considerations in the Board's deliberations and decision-making processes.

#### **Director Independence**

We use the definition of "independence" set forth in Sections 121 and 802 of the Amex Company Guide, as applicable and as may be modified or supplemented from time to time and the interpretations thereunder, to determine if the members of our Board are independent. In making this determination, our Board considers, among other things, transactions and relationships between each director and his immediate family and the Company, including those reported in this proxy statement under the caption "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions." The purpose of this review is to determine whether any such relationships or transactions are material and, therefore, inconsistent with a determination that the directors are independent. As a result of this review, our Board affirmatively determined, based on its understanding of such relationships and transactions that our Board was comprised of a majority of independent directors and will remain comprised of a majority of independent directors if Proposal 1 is approved by the Stockholders and Derace L. Schaffer, M.D. is elected as the eighth director.

#### **Process for Communicating with Board Members**

Interested parties may communicate with any and all members our Board of Directors by transmitting correspondence addressed to one or more directors by name at the following address: PharmAthene, Inc., One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401, c/o Corporate Secretary. Communications from our stockholders to one or more directors will be collected and organized by our Corporate Secretary and will be forwarded to the Chairman of the Board of Directors or to the identified director(s) as soon as practicable. If multiple communications are received on a similar topic, the Corporate Secretary may, in his or her discretion, forward only representative correspondence.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors will determine whether any communication addressed to the entire Board of Directors should be properly addressed by the entire Board of Directors or a committee thereof. If a communication is sent to the Board of Directors or a Committee, the Chairman of the Board of Directors or the Chairman of that committee, as the case may be, will determine whether a response to the communication is warranted.

#### **Director Attendance at Annual Meeting**

The Company has no specific policy regarding director attendance at its Annual Meeting. Generally, however, Board and Committee meetings are held immediately preceding and following the Annual Meeting, with directors attending the Annual Meeting.

#### **Director Compensation**

The following table sets forth the cash and non-cash compensation of our directors (other than our Chief Executive Officer, who is not separately compensated for his service on the Board) for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. Prior to the consummation of our merger in August 2007, our directors did not receive any cash compensation for services rendered. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, no non-employee member of our Board received any stock award, non-equity incentive plan compensation or nonqualified deferred compensation earnings. In the paragraph following the table and in the footnotes, we describe our standard compensation arrangement for service on the Board of Directors and Board Committees.

Name(1)	Fees Earned or Paid in Cash(2) (\$)	Option Awards (\$)(3)	All Other Compensation (\$)(4)	Total (\$)
John Pappajohn(5)	5,000	35,467	66,398	106,865
Joel McCleary	8,000	35,467	_	43,467
John Gill	9,500	35,467	_	44,967
James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D.	8,750	35,467		44,217
Elizabeth Czerepak	6,875	35,467	_	42,342
Steven St. Peter	6,375	35,467	_	41,842
Derace L. Schaffer, M.D.(6)(7)	5,000	35,467	_	40,467
Edward A. Berger(6)	0	0	_	0
Wayne Schellhammer(6)	0	0	_	0

- (1) See the Summary Compensation Table for disclosure related to compensation paid to David P. Wright, our Chief Executive Officer and President.

  Mr. Wright is our only employee director and does not receive any additional compensation for his services as a member of our Board of Directors.
- (2) Fees earned are based on membership on the Board of Director, committee membership and leadership positions. Please refer to our general policy on compensation of the members of our Board of Directors below in the section entitled "General Policy Regarding Compensation of Directors."
- (3) On October 9, 2007, each current non-employee member of our Board was granted an option under our 2007 Plan to purchase 20,000 shares of our common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, at an exercise price of \$5.25 per share based on the closing price of our common stock on the grant date as reported on the Amex on October 9, 2007. Fifty percent of such options vested immediately on the grant date and the remaining 50% will vest on the one year anniversary of the grant date, October 9, 2008. The fair value of the options was \$3.55 per share, determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation model.
- (4) In addition to the other compensation received, members of the Board of Directors are reimbursed for the reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred by them in connection with travel to and from Board and committee meetings. None of such reimbursements amounted to \$10,000 or more.
- (5) On August 3, 2007, what is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation, merged into a subsidiary of the Company (formerly known as Healthcare Acquisition Corp.). Prior to our merger, we agreed to pay Equity Dynamics, Inc., an affiliated third party of which Mr. Pappajohn is the President and principal stockholder, approximately \$7,500 per month for office space and certain additional general and administrative services. As of December 31, 2007, we had paid approximately \$52,500 under this arrangement. The arrangement was terminated upon

- the consummation of the merger. These payments were not regarded as compensation to Mr. Pappajohn. Other amounts reflected are attributable to Mr. Pappajohn's reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred by him in connection with travel to and from Board meetings.
- These individuals were members of the Board of Directors and of committees of the Company prior to our merger and resigned as Board and committee members on August 3, 2007 pursuant to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of January 19, 2007, by and among the Company, PAI Acquisition Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company ("Merger Sub"), and what has since been renamed PharmAthene US Corporation. No fees or other forms of compensation were paid for services of a member of the Board of Directors or any committees through August 2, 2007.
- (7) Subsequent to our merger, Dr. Schaffer has acted as a consultant to the Board of Directors and has received the fees and options reflected as compensation for his services in such capacity. This compensation is also reported in the Summary Compensation Table below.

Also, on April 28, 2008, in recognition of his position as chair of the Government Affairs Committee, the Company granted to Joel McCleary an option to purchase 50,000 shares of our common stock at an exercise price of \$2.97 per share based on the closing price of our common stock on the grant dated as reported on the Amex on April 28, 2008. Fifty percent of such options vest on the first anniversary of the grant date and the remaining 50% vest on the second anniversary of the grant date.

#### **General Policy Regarding Compensation of Directors**

Each non-employee member of our Board receives the following cash compensation: \$20,000 cash retainer for all members of the Board, \$1,500 cash payment to all members of the Board for meetings in excess of six per year, \$15,000 cash retainer for the Audit Committee chair, \$5,000 cash retainer for all members of the Audit Committee, \$12,000 cash retainer for the Compensation Committee, \$10,000 cash retainer for the Governance and Nominating Committee, and \$750 cash payment to all committee members for meetings in excess of six per year. Beginning with the directors elected at this Annual Meeting, all non-employee members of our Board will receive an option to purchase 10,000 shares of our common stock, at an exercise price per share based on the closing price of our common stock on the grant date as reported on the Amex, and immediately vesting on the grant date.

#### **Audit Committee Report(1)**

The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 with management of the Company and has furnished the following report for inclusion in this proxy statement.

The Audit Committee consists of three (3) directors named below. Each member of the Audit Committee is an independent director as defined by applicable SEC rules and Amex listing standards. In addition, the Board has determined that John Gill is the "audit committee financial expert" as defined by applicable SEC rules and that James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D. and Elizabeth Czerepak satisfy the "accounting or related financial management expertise" criteria established by the Amex. The Audit Committee operates under a written charter adopted by the Board, which is available free of charge on

(1) The material in this report is not "soliciting material" and is not deemed "filed" with the SEC and is not to be incorporated by reference in any of our filings under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, in each case, as amended, whether made before or after the date hereof and irrespective of any general incorporation language in any such filing.

our website under the heading "Investor Relations" (see "Corporate Governance"—"Audit Committee Charter"), or by writing to PharmAthene, Inc., One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401, c/o Corporate Secretary.

Management is responsible for the Company's internal controls and preparing the Company's consolidated financial statements. The Company's independent accountants are responsible for performing an independent audit of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and issuing a report thereon. The Committee is responsible for overseeing the conduct of these activities and, subject to shareowner ratification, appointing the Company's independent accountants. As stated above and in the Committee's charter, the Committee's responsibility is one of oversight. The Committee does not provide any expert or special assurance as to PharmAthene's financial statements concerning compliance with laws, regulations or generally accepted accounting principles. In performing its oversight function, the Committee relies, without independent verification, on the information provided to it and on representations made by management and the independent accountants.

The Audit Committee reviewed and discussed the Company's consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2007 with management and the independent accountants. Management represented to the Audit Committee that the Company's consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. The Audit Committee discussed with the independent accountants matters required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standard No. 61, as amended, *Communication with Audit Committees*, as adopted by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board. The Committee also reviewed, and discussed with management and E&Y, management's report and E&Y's report and attestation on internal control over financial reporting in accordance with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

The Company's independent accountants provided to the Audit Committee the written disclosures required by Independence Standards Board Standard No. 1, *Independence Discussions with Audit Committees*, and the Committee discussed with the independent accountants their independence. The Audit Committee concluded that E&Y's provision of non-audit services, as described in the following section of this proxy statement, to the Company and its affiliates is compatible with E&Y's independence.

Based on the Audit Committee's discussion with management and the independent accountants and the Audit Committee's review of the representations of management and the report of the independent accountants, the Committee recommended that the Board include the audited consolidated financial statements in the Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007 filed with the SEC.

#### SUBMITTED BY THE AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

John Gill, Chairman James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D. Elizabeth Czerepak

#### **Executives and Executive Compensation**

**Executives.** The following table sets forth the names, ages and positions of our executive officers:

Name	Age	Office
David P. Wright	60	Chief Executive Officer and Director
Christopher C. Camut	45	Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
Valerie Riddle, M.D.	47	Vice President, Medical Director
Eric I. Richman	47	Senior Vice President, Business Development and Strategic
		Planning
Francesca Cook	43	Vice President, Policy and Government Affairs
Wayne Morges, Ph.D.	61	Vice President, Regulatory Affairs and Quality
Joan Fusco, Ph.D.	52	Vice President, Operations

The following are biographical summaries of our executive officers who are not directors:

Christopher C. Camut, 45. Mr. Camut has been our Vice President, Chief Financial Officer since August 3, 2007 following the merger and, from January 2007 through August 3, 2007, held the same position with the privately-held PharmAthene, Inc., prior to the merger, which is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. Mr. Camut brings more than 14 years of experience in health care and technology corporate finance and investment banking to PharmAthene. Most recently, from August 2005 through December 2006, Mr. Camut served as Chief Financial Officer for RecoverCare LLC, a specialty medical equipment provider based in Plymouth Meeting, Pennsylvania. From 2000 through 2005, Mr. Camut was a Managing Director for Wachovia Securities' Equity Capital Markets and the Corporate & Investment Banking Groups. Mr. Camut received his Master of Business Administration from the University of Chicago Graduate School of Business, Chicago, Illinois, and holds a Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering from the University of Maryland, College Park, Maryland.

**Valerie Riddle, M.D., 47.** Dr. Riddle has been our Vice President, Medical Director since August 3, 2007 following the merger, and, from October 2003 through August 3, 2007, held the same position with our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. Prior to joining the Company, Dr. Riddle was with Guilford Pharmaceuticals as Vice President, Medical Affairs in 2001 and was promoted to Vice President, Clinical and Medical Affairs in 2002. From 1998 to 1999, Dr. Riddle was with MedImmune, Inc. first as Director, Medical Sciences and, later, as Senior Director, Medical Sciences. Prior to 1998, Dr. Riddle spent several years at Washington Hospital Center in Washington, D.C., most recently as Director, HIV Service. Dr. Riddle received her Bachelor of Arts in Chemistry, cum laude, from the University of South Florida in 1984 and her Doctor of Medicine degree from University of South Florida in 1989 and is Board certified in Internal Medicine and Infectious Diseases.

**Eric I. Richman, 47.** Mr. Richman has been our Senior Vice President, Business Development and Strategic Planning since August 3, 2007 following the merger, and, from August 2003 through August 3, 2007, held the same position with the privately-held PharmAthene, Inc., prior to the merger and which is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. Prior to joining the Company, Mr. Richman was Vice President of Corporate Development at MaxCyte, Inc. from 2000 through 2003 and, prior to 2000, was Director, International Commercialization and Product Director at MedImmune, Inc. Mr. Richman serves as Director of Lev Pharmaceuticals and Director of ADMA Biologics, Inc. Mr. Richman received a Bachelor of Science in Biomedical Science from the Sophie Davis School of Biomedical Education (CUNY Medical School) and a Master of Business Administration from the American Graduate School of International Management.

Francesca Cook, 43. Ms. Cook has been our Vice President, Policy and Government Affairs since August 3, 2007 following the merger. Ms. Cook joined privately-held PharmAthene, Inc., prior to the merger, which is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation, in October 2003. Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Cook served as Vice President, Policy & Reimbursement Services for Guilford Pharmaceuticals from March 2001 through October 2003 and Vice President at Covance Health Economics and Outcomes Services, a health care consulting firm from 1996 though 2001. Additionally, Ms. Cook worked in the U.S. Senate and the U.S. Department of Health and Human Services from 1988 through 1993. Ms. Cook received a Bachelor of Arts degree in Biology from Mount Holyoke College and a Master of Public Health degree from Yale University School of Medicine, Department of Public Health.

Wayne Morges, Ph.D., 61. Dr. Morges has been our Vice President, Regulatory Affairs and Quality since August 3, 2007 following the merger, and, from January 2005 through August 3, 2007, held the same position with privately-held PharmAthene, Inc. prior to the merger, which is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. Prior to joining the Company, Dr. Morges was the Vice President of Global Regulatory Affairs, Vaccines for Baxter Healthcare Corporation from June 2000 to November 2004. Previously, Dr. Morges worked at Merck holding various positions of increasing responsibility in Merck's vaccine division including heading Quality & Regulatory Affairs for licensed biologicals. Dr. Morges holds a Ph.D. in Microbiology and Immunology from Hahnemann University and Bachelor of Science and Master of Science degrees from Penn State University.

**Joan Fusco, Ph.D., 52.** Dr. Fusco has been our Senior Vice President, Operations since February 2008. Prior to joining PharmAthene, from October 2004 through January 2008, Dr. Fusco served as Senior Vice President, Operations for Acambis, Inc. From June 2000 through October 2004, Dr. Fusco served as Vice President, Technical Affairs—Vaccines, and Vice President, Global Project Management for Baxter Healthcare Corporation, BioScience Division. Dr. Fusco is a graduate of the University of Pittsburgh where she received a Ph.D. in Microbiology/Biological Sciences.

#### **Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation**

After the consummation of our merger, the Board of Directors established the Compensation Committee and appointed each of Joel McCleary, John Gill and Steven St. Peter as its inaugural members. All of the members of the Compensation Committee are independent directors, and no member is or has been an employee or former employee of PharmAthene. No Committee member had any relationship requiring disclosure under "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions" on page 26 of this proxy statement. During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, none of our executive officers served on the Compensation Committee (or its equivalent) or on the Board of Directors of another entity whose executive officer served on our Compensation Committee.

#### **Summary Compensation Table**

The following Summary Compensation Table sets forth, for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, all compensation awarded to, earned by, or paid to our Chief Executive Officer and the two most highly compensated executive officers who received annual compensation in excess of \$100,000. There were no nonqualified deferred compensation earnings paid to any executive in 2007.

Name and Principal Position	Year	Salary (\$)(1)	Bonus (\$)(1)	Stock Awards (\$)(2)	Option Awards (\$)(1)(2)	All Other Compensation (\$)	Totals (\$)
David P. Wright(3) Chief Executive Officer	2007 2006	369,180 337,339	100,000 75,000	36,125 —	302,460 73,437	_	807,765 485,776
Eric I. Richman Senior Vice President, Business Development and Strategic Planning	2007 2006	285,641 229,655	65,000 40,850	12,822 —	214,953 26,380	_	578,416 296,885
Valerie Riddle, M.D. Vice President, Medical Director	2007 2006	264,841 251,746	32,500 39,240	9,616	163,028 15,723	_	469,985 306,709
Derace L. Schaffer, M.D.(4) Chief Executive Officer	2007 2006	_	_			40,467 —	_

- (1) On August 3, 2007, what is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation, merged into a subsidiary of the Company (formerly known as Healthcare Acquisition Corp.). The information in the table above reflects compensation paid for services rendered to privately-held PharmAthene, Inc., prior to the merger, which is now PharmAthene US Corporation, our wholly-owned subsidiary, for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 and for the period from January 1, 2007 through August 3, 2007 and for services rendered to the Company from August 3, 2007 through December 31, 2007.
- (2) Dollar amounts shown are the compensation expense related to stock options and restricted stock recognized for financial statement reporting purposes in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standard 123(R), *Share-Based Payment*. The assumptions used in the calculation of these amounts are set forth in Note 2 to the Company's Consolidated Financial Statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007.
- (3) Mr. Wright serves on our Board of Directors but does not receive any compensation for his service in this capacity.
- (4) Dr. Schaffer resigned as Chief Executive Officer on August 3, 2007 in connection with the consummation of the merger. The amount indicated as all other compensation reflects compensation received by Dr. Schaffer in connection with consulting services provided to the Company subsequent to our merger and are comprised of a fee of \$5,000 and a grant of options valued at \$35,467, using a fair value of \$3.55 per share determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation model.

# **Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End**

The following table sets forth information concerning the outstanding equity awards of each of the named executive officers in the Summary Compensation Table as of December 31, 2007.

		Option Awards(1	Stock Awards(2)			
Name	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options(#) Exercisable	Number of Securities Underlying Unexercised Options(#) Unexercisable	Option Exercise Price (\$)	Option Expiration Date	Number of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (#)(3)	Market Value of Shares or Units of Stock That Have Not Vested (\$)(3)
David P. Wright,	51,695	_	2.96	7/15/13(4)	100,000(9)	395,000
Chief Executive Officer,	43,926	2,881	3.80	1/18/15(5)	11,111(-)	,
President and Director	7,045	4,026	3.80	1/01/16(6)		
	5,058	11,498	3.80	1/04/17(7)		
	0	780,000	5.36	8/30/12(8)		
Eric I. Richman,	28,638	_	2.96	10/14/13(10)	30,000(12)	118,500
Senior Vice President,	10,582	461	3.80	1/18/15(5)		
Business Development	3,194	1,316	3.80	1/01/16(6)		
and Strategic Planning	2,530	5,752	3.80	1/04/17(7)		
	52,000	208,000	5.20	10/02/11(11)		
Valerie Riddle, MD,	9,546	_	2.96	10/14/13(10)	22,500(13)	88,875
Vice President, Medical	8,160	355	3.80	1/18/15(5)	,===(=)	,-
Director	3,345	1,379	3.80	1/01/16(6)		
	2,530	5,753	3.80	1/04/17(7)		
	40,000	160,000	5.20	10/02/11(11)		
Derace L. Schaffer, M.D., Former Chief Executive Officer	10,000	10,000	5.25	10/09/17(14)		

- (1) Reflects options initially granted under our 2002 Incentive Plan which options were assumed by the Company pursuant to and in accordance with our merger and are now under the 2007 Plan as well as options granted under the 2007 Plan.
- (2) Reflects restricted common stock awards granted under our 2007 Plan on October 2, 2007. Unless otherwise indicated in the footnotes below, all shares of restricted stock vest in three equal annual installments of 33.3% of the grant beginning on the first anniversary of the date of grant (October 3, 2008).
- (3) Reflects a closing price of our common stock on December 31, 2007 of \$3.95 per share. The price of our common stock on March 31, 2008 was \$3.10.
- (4) Reflects options granted on July 15, 2003 which vest in equal annual installments over four years on the anniversary of the date of grant with the first 25% vesting on July 15, 2004.
- (5) Reflects options granted on January 18, 2005 pursuant to which 25% vest upon the of date grant and the remainder vest over 36 months beginning on the second month following the first anniversary (March, 2005).
- (6) Reflects options granted on January 1, 2006 pursuant to which 25% vest upon the date of grant and the remainder vest in equal monthly installments over 36 months beginning on the second month following the date of grant (March, 2007).

- (7) Reflects options granted on January 4, 2007 which vest in equal monthly installments over 36 months beginning on the month following the date of grant (February, 2007).
- (8) Reflects options granted on August 30, 2007 pursuant to which 25% vest on the first anniversary of the date of grant (August 30, 2008) and the remainder vest in equal monthly installments over 48 months beginning on the month following the first anniversary (September, 2008).
- (9) Reflects a restricted stock award granted on August 30, 2007 pursuant to which 25% vests on the first anniversary of the date of grant (August 30, 2008) and the remainder vests in equal monthly installments over 48 months beginning on the first month following the first anniversary (September, 2008).
- (10) Reflects options granted on October 14, 2003 which vest in equal annual installments over 4 years on the anniversary of the date of grant with the first 25% vesting on October 14, 2004.
- (11) Reflects options granted on October 2, 2007 pursuant to which 20% vest upon the date of grant, 20% vests on the first anniversary of the date of grant (October 2, 2008) and the remainder vests in equal monthly installments over 36 months beginning on the first month following the first anniversary (November, 2008).
- (12) Reflects a restricted stock award granted on October 2, 2007 pursuant to which 33.3% vests on each anniversary of the date of grant with the first 33.3% vesting on October 2, 2008.
- (13) Reflects a restricted stock award granted on November 15, 2005 pursuant to which 33.3% vests on each anniversary of the date of grant (November 15, 2006) with the first 33.3% vesting on November 15, 2005.
- (14) Reflects options granted on October 9, 2007 pursuant to which 50% vested on the date of grant and its remainder vests on the first anniversary of the date of grant (October 9, 2008).

# **Equity Compensation Plan Information**

This information regarding our 2007 Plan, which was approved by our stockholders, and the 2002 Long-Term Incentive Plan assumed by us in the merger is incorporated by reference to Note 11 to our consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 contained in our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 31, 2008.

The basic features of our 2007 Plan are summarized below in the discussion under Proposal 3 under the caption "2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan." However, this summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of our 2007 Plan, which is attached hereto as *Appendix B*.

# **Potential Payments Under Termination or Change in Control**

# David P. Wright

In connection with the merger, the Company entered into an employment agreement with David P. Wright regarding his employment as Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Under the terms of the employment agreement, if Mr. Wright's employment is terminated without cause or he resigns for good reason, in each case as defined under the employment agreement, Mr. Wright is entitled to severance payments in the form of a continuation of his base salary immediately prior to such termination for a period of 12 months following the effective date of the termination and, in addition, an amount of shares equal to up to 25% of the total aggregate amount of options and restricted stock granted would become vested with the remaining balance of unvested options and restricted stock being forfeited. Further, in the event of a change in control of PharmAthene, as defined under the employment agreement, and the termination of Mr. Wright's employment either in connection with the change in control or without cause within 12 months following the change in control, in addition to the severance

payments to which Mr. Wright would be entitled, all stock options and shares of restricted stock held by Mr. Wright that are not then vested would become immediately and fully vested.

#### Eric I. Richman

In connection with the merger, the Company assumed Mr. Richman's employment agreement with PharmAthene US Corporation, which was effective November 17, 2003, regarding his employment as Vice President, Business Development & Strategic Planning of the Company and now as Senior Vice President, Business Development and Strategic Planning. Under the terms of the employment agreement, if Mr. Richman's employment is terminated he is entitled to severance payments in the form of a continuation of his base salary immediately prior to such termination for a period of 12 months following the effective date of the termination, payable in consideration for and only after he executes a Separation Agreement and General Release under terms specified by the Company. Conversely, Mr. Richman will not receive severance if he voluntarily resigns employment or if he is terminated for: (1) failure to perform his obligations or duties, or (2) any dishonesty detrimental to the Company, or other act or omission by him detrimental to the Company's business, financial condition, reputation or good will, or damaging to its relationships with its employees, business partners, or other third parties, including, without limitation: (A) any habitual use of alcohol or illegal drugs such as to interfere with the performance of his obligations hereunder; and (B) any conviction of a felony or of any crime involving fraud, embezzlement, misappropriation, or theft.

#### Valerie Riddle, M.D.

In connection with the merger, the Company assumed Dr. Riddle's employment agreement with PharmAthene US Corporation, which was effective October 14, 2003, regarding her employment as Vice President, Medical Director of the Company. Under the terms of the employment agreement, if Dr. Riddle's employment is terminated she is entitled to severance payments in the form of a continuation of her base salary immediately prior to such termination for a period of 12 months following the effective date of the termination, payable in consideration for and only after she executes a Separation Agreement and General Release under terms specified by the Company. Conversely, Dr. Riddle will not receive severance if she voluntarily resigns employment or if she is terminated for: (1) failure to perform her obligations or duties, or (2) any dishonesty detrimental to the Company, or other act or omission by her detrimental to the Company's business, financial condition, reputation or good will, or damaging to its relationships with its employees, business partners, or other third parties, including, without limitation: (A) any habitual use of alcohol or illegal drugs such as to interfere with the performance of her obligations hereunder; and (B) any conviction of a felony or of any crime involving fraud, embezzlement, misappropriation, or theft.

On April 28, 2008, the Board of Directors approved a new form of employment agreement for members of senior management. This new form provides for 12 months' severance in the event of termination of the executive without cause subsequent to a change of control as defined in the agreement. In addition to the severance payment, all stock options and shares of restricted stock held by the executive that are not then vested would become immediately and fully vested. The agreements have not yet been entered into by the Company.

# **Employment Agreements**

#### David P. Wright

In connection with the merger, the Company entered into an employment agreement with David P. Wright regarding his employment as Chief Executive Officer of the Company. Under the agreement, Mr. Wright receives a base salary of \$392,000 per year subject to increase (which is consistent with the salary he previously received as PharmAthene's Chief Executive Officer) and is eligible to receive

annual bonus compensation of up to 30% of his base salary plus additional bonuses at the option and discretion of the Compensation Committee. On August 30, 2007, the Compensation Committee granted to Mr. Wright a stock option to purchase 780,000 shares of the Company's common stock pursuant to the 2007 Plan at an exercise price of \$5.36, which is equal to the fair market value of a share of the Company's common stock on the date of the grant as determined in accordance with applicable law and regulations by the closing price of the Company's common stock on August 30, 2007, and a restricted stock award of 100,000 shares of the Company's common stock. The option has a term of ten (10) years and both the option and the restricted stock award, subject to possible acceleration of vesting, will vest over a 5 year period with 25% vesting on the first anniversary of the grant date and the remainder vesting monthly on a pro-rata basis over the succeeding 48 months following the first anniversary date. Mr. Wright is eligible to receive additional grants of stock options and restricted stock at the discretion of the Compensation Committee and participates in PharmAthene's standard employee benefits package (including group medical, dental and vision insurance coverage, paid holiday, vacation and sick leave, and 401(k) plan participation) and an automobile allowance in an amount not to exceed \$1,000 per month. Also pursuant to the terms of his employment agreement, Mr. Wright is reimbursed for all reasonable, documented business expenses incurred in the course of performing his duties and for legal expenses, up to \$10,000, incurred in connection with the review and negotiation of his employment agreement. The agreement requires that during his employment and for a period of 12 months following termination of his employment, Mr. Wright shall not directly or indirectly engage in the development, production, marketing or sale of products that compete with the products of PharmAthene or assist others in a competing business o

If Mr. Wright's employment is terminated without cause or he resigns for good reason, in each case as defined under the employment agreement, Mr. Wright is entitled to severance payments in the form of a continuation of his base salary immediately prior to such termination for a period of 12 months following the effective date of the termination and, in addition, an amount of shares equal to up to 25% of the total aggregate amount of options and restricted stock granted would become vested with the remaining balance of unvested options and restricted stock being forfeited. Further, in the event of a change in control of PharmAthene, as defined under the employment agreement, and the termination of Mr. Wright's employment either in connection with the change in control or without cause within 12 months following the change in control, in addition to the severance payments to which Mr. Wright would be entitled, all stock options and shares of restricted stock held by Mr. Wright that are not then vested would become immediately and fully vested.

#### Eric I. Richman

In connection with the merger, the Company assumed Mr. Richman's employment agreement with PharmAthene US Corporation, which was effective November 17, 2003, regarding his employment as Vice President, Business Development & Strategic Planning of the Company and now as Senior Vice President, Business Development and Strategic Planning. Under the agreement, Mr. Richman receives a base salary of \$195,000 per year starting in 2003 subject to adjustments, received 518,660 stock options which converted into 26,638 stock options as a result of the merger, and is eligible to receive annual bonus compensation at the option and discretion of the Compensation Committee. Mr. Richman is eligible to receive additional grants of stock options and restricted stock at the discretion of the Compensation Committee and participates in PharmAthene's standard employee benefits package (including group medical, dental and vision insurance coverage, paid holiday, vacation and sick leave, and 401(k) plan participation). The agreement requires that during his employment and for a period of 12 months following termination of his employment, Mr. Richman shall not directly or indirectly engage in the development, production, marketing or sale of products that compete with the

products of PharmAthene or assist others in a competing business or induce other employees of PharmAthene to terminate their employment with PharmAthene or engage in a competing business. The employment agreement also requires Mr. Richman to refrain from directly or indirectly disclosing any confidential information obtained while working at PharmAthene.

If Mr. Richman's employment is terminated he is entitled to severance payments in the form of a continuation of his base salary immediately prior to such termination for a period of 12 months following the effective date of the termination, payable in consideration for and only after he executes a Separation Agreement and General Release under terms specified by the Company. Conversely, Mr. Richman will not receive severance if he voluntarily resigns employment or if he is terminated for: (1) failure to perform his obligations or duties, or (2) any dishonesty detrimental to the Company, or other act or omission by him detrimental to the Company's business, financial condition, reputation or good will, or damaging to its relationships with its employees, business partners, or other third parties, including, without limitation: (A) any habitual use of alcohol or illegal drugs such as to interfere with the performance of his obligations hereunder; and (B) any conviction of a felony or of any crime involving fraud, embezzlement, misappropriation, or theft.

Mr. Richman's current salary effective January 1, 2008 is \$275,126.

#### Valerie Riddle, M.D.

In connection with the merger, the Company assumed Dr. Riddle's employment agreement with PharmAthene US Corporation, which was effective October 14, 2003, regarding her employment as Vice President, Medical Director of the Company. Under the agreement, Dr. Riddle receives a base salary of \$225,000 per year starting in 2003 subject to adjustments, received 345,772 stock options one-half of which she exercised prior to the merger and the remainder of which converted into 9,546 stock options as a result of the merger, and is eligible to receive annual bonus compensation at the option and discretion of the Compensation Committee. Dr. Riddle is eligible to receive additional grants of stock options and restricted stock at the discretion of the Compensation Committee and participates in PharmAthene's standard employee benefits package (including group medical, dental and vision insurance coverage, paid holiday, vacation and sick leave, and 401(k) plan participation). The agreement requires that during his employment and for a period of 12 months following termination of her employment, Dr. Riddle shall not directly or indirectly engage in the development, production, marketing or sale of products that compete with the products of PharmAthene or assist others in a competing business or induce other employees of PharmAthene to terminate their employment with PharmAthene or engage in a competing business. The employment agreement also requires Dr. Riddle to refrain from directly or indirectly disclosing any confidential information obtained while working at PharmAthene.

If Dr. Riddle's employment is terminated she is entitled to severance payments in the form of a continuation of her base salary immediately prior to such termination for a period of 12 months following the effective date of the termination, payable in consideration for and only after she executes a Separation Agreement and General Release under terms specified by the Company. Conversely, Dr. Riddle will not receive severance if she voluntarily resigns employment or if she is terminated for: (1) failure to perform her obligations or duties, or (2) any dishonesty detrimental to the Company, or other act or omission by her detrimental to the Company's business, financial condition, reputation or good will, or damaging to its relationships with its employees, business partners, or other third parties, including, without limitation: (A) any habitual use of alcohol or illegal drugs such as to interfere with the performance of her obligations hereunder; and (B) any conviction of a felony or of any crime involving fraud, embezzlement, misappropriation, or theft.

Dr. Riddle's current salary effective January 1, 2008 is \$268,425.

On April 28, 2008, the Board of Directors approved a new form of employment agreement for members of senior management. This new form provides for 12 months' severance in the event of termination of the executive without cause subsequent to a change of control as defined in the agreement. In addition to the severance payment, all stock options and shares of restricted stock held by the executive that are not then vested would become immediately and fully vested. The agreements have not yet been entered into by the Company.

#### 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan

The Company has a long-term incentive plan adopted by the Stockholders at the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on August 3, 2007. As the 2007 Plan is proposed to be amended, a description of the 2007 Plan and the proposed amendment are contained in the section entitled "Proposal 4." Please see this section for information regarding the 2007 Plan. A copy of the 2007 Plan as proposed to be amended is attached hereto as *Appendix B* as well. The description of the 2007 Plan summarized in the section entitled "Proposal 4" is qualified in its entirety by reference to the full text of the 2007 Plan.

#### 2008 Bonus Program

The Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the Company has adopted a bonus program (the "Bonus Program") for our executive officers and other employees to be identified from time to time by the Chief Executive Officer. The Bonus Program was established to provide for the payment to members of management and identified employees of a bonus that is linked to achievement of key corporate performance objectives and, in the case of executives, also to the achievement of key personal objectives which are approved by the Compensation Committee. The goal of the Bonus Program is to reward personnel by providing further compensation to members of management and identified employees based on the achievement of specified annual goals that the Compensation Committee and the Board of Directors believe correlate closely with the growth of long-term stockholder value. We believe that the Bonus Program will also promote greater communication and foster the appropriate feedback for enhanced productivity and effectiveness.

The Bonus Program is intended to be applicable to the following members of management: the President and Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Senior Vice President-Business Development and Strategic Planning, the Senior Vice President-Operations, the Vice President-Medical Director, Vice President-Regulatory Affairs and Quality and Vice President-Policy and Government Affairs. At the beginning of each fiscal year, and based upon the recommendations of the Chief Executive Officer and the Compensation Committee, the Board of Directors will approve (i) a target bonus pool amount; (ii) a target bonus payout for each executive in the Bonus Program, (iii) the financial achievement percentages and bonus modifiers that will be used to determine the component of the bonus based upon a comparison of the Company's financial performance for the fiscal year against the Board approved financial plan for the fiscal year, (iv) the executives' personal objectives for the fiscal year, and (v) the weight or importance of the corporate financial performance objectives and the personal objectives. After the end of each fiscal year, the Compensation Committee will measure the Company's actual financial performance and consider each executive's personal performance to determine the appropriate adjustment to the executive's target bonus.

Determining the annual target bonus pool. Early in each fiscal year, the Board of Directors will determine a target bonus pool for that fiscal year and determine how much of that pool should be allocated to executive officers and how much should be allocated to all other personnel. This pool will be a target which may be revised by the Board at their discretion.

For fiscal year 2008, the bonus target bonus pool has been established at \$1,500,000. This number was developed as the approximate sum equal to 30% of the aggregate base salary of the executive officers and 10% of the aggregate base salaries of all other employees of the Company.

The pool is to be divided among the relevant executives with reference to the achievement of specific personal and corporate targets. The Compensation Committee shall have the discretion to award more or less than the initial pool amount; and any particular executive may be awarded a bonus that is greater or less than 30% of their base salary and any non-executive employee may be awarded a bonus that is greater or less than their base salary. Finally, the pool may be increased to the extent new executive officers may be hired during the year.

Determining the annual target bonus. Early in each fiscal year, the Compensation Committee shall determine the target bonus for each executive in the Bonus Program taking into account any terms regarding bonuses which may be contained in each executive's employment agreement. Under his employment agreement, Mr. Wright is eligible to receive a bonus equal to up 30% of his base salary. The Board will consider all factors that it deems relevant to such determination, including, but not limited to, the recommendations of our Chief Executive Officer (except with respect to his own bonus), competitive market conditions, and the Board's assessment of the level of growth reflected in the Company's financial performance objectives. The executives are not subject to a maximum bonus payout. All bonuses will be paid in cash.

For fiscal year 2008, target bonus payouts for all executive officers have been set at up to \$650,000. The target bonus payouts for non-executive employees has been set at \$850,000, equal to 10% of aggregate non-executive employee base salary for fiscal year 2008. These annual target bonus levels may be modified based upon the terms of employment agreements with our executives, which have been approved by the Chief Executive Officer and Board of Directors, as applicable, changes in market conditions or performance of the Company in each case in the sole discretion of the Board of Directors.

Determining the financial achievement percentages, bonus modifiers and corporate financial plan. Early in each fiscal year, the Compensation Committee will review with the executive team and establish corporate performance objectives for the fiscal year that will apply to all executive officers, including the chief executive officer and achievement percentages and bonus modifiers that will be used to evaluate the portion of the bonus applicable to each executive based upon the Company's financial performance. The Board will review and consider senior management's recommendations for financial achievement percentages, bonus modifiers and the fiscal year financial plan and discuss such recommendations with senior management before making final determinations.

The Compensation Committee has established with management specific strategic goals for 2008 as follows, with percentage weighting reflecting the approximate percentage value to be placed upon the achievement of each target:

- 1. Expand the product portfolio on attractive terms (20%);
- 2. Secure adequate additional financing for the Company (25%);
- 3. Secure significant Government procurement contracts and grants (25%);
- 4. Financial performance in line with communications with respect to budgets and forecasts presented to the Board of Directors subject to later modifications presented to and approved by the Board (10%);
- 5. Advance product pipeline (10%); and
- 6. Achieve positive stock price performance and communications with the markets (10%).

Determining personal objectives. Also early in each fiscal year, the Compensation Committee, will consider and approve each executive's personal objectives for the fiscal year. Each executive's personal objectives will be agreed upon by the executive and approved by our Chief Executive Officer (except with respect to his own personal objectives). The personal objectives of our Chief Executive Officer will be the corporate objectives for all executive officers.

Determining weight of corporate financial performance objectives and personal objectives. The Compensation Committee will also evaluate the weight or importance that will be placed on achievement of the two corporate financial performance objectives and the personal objectives.

Measuring performance. After the end of the fiscal year, the Compensation Committee will measure the Company's actual performance (using the predetermined financial achievement percentages) and assess each executive's personal performance against his or her personal objectives to determine the appropriate bonus allocable to each executive officer from the target bonus pool. The Committee will consider the executive's overall contribution to the Company's success and, in the case of executives other than the Chief Executive Officer, the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer. In determining the appropriate bonuses, the Compensation Committee will also consider other performance considerations related to unforeseen events occurring during the fiscal year. In appropriate circumstances, the Committee has discretion to award a bonus that is less than the amount determined by the procedures outlined above, including to award no bonus at all or greater than the amounts that might be determined by the procedures outlined above.

DolmatConnell, our compensation consultant, has reviewed the structure of our Bonus Program and has made recommendations which have been incorporated into the Bonus Program.

#### **Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions**

There are no familial relationships among our directors, nominees and/or executive officers.

On May 2, 2007, the individuals identified below adopted stock purchase plans intended to comply with the provisions of SEC Rule 10b5-1. The shares were purchased through an NASD member firm at its discretion, subject to the terms of the plans. Pursuant to the adopted plans, the individuals, John Pappajohn, Matthew Kinley and Derace Schaffer agreed to make the following open market purchases:

	Total Shares	Share Limit Per Day
John Pappajohn	100,000 shares	10,000 shares
Derace Schaffer	100,000 shares	10,000 shares
Matthew Kinley (former President of the Company)	50,000 shares	5,000 shares

The aggregate number of shares that were purchased did not exceed 250,000 shares. Further, each adopted a daily limit on the number of shares purchased of not more than 25,000 shares. The individuals purchased shares at prices up to \$7.60 per share. The plans expired on August 3, 2007.

Prior to the conclusion of the Special Meeting of Stockholders commenced on August 2, 2007 at which the Stockholders voted to approve our merger, during a period when they were not then aware of any material nonpublic information regarding PharmAthene or its securities, the management of PharmAthene, and/or their affiliates engaged in certain public market purchases, as well as private purchases, of securities.

On August 2, 2007, each of John Pappajohn and Derace Schaffer purchased 100,000 shares of common stock and Matthew Kinley purchased 50,000 shares of common stock. In addition, Healthcare Ventures VII, L.P. and funds affiliated with MPM Capital L.P. each purchased 125,000 shares of our common stock. On August 3, 2007, prior to the consummation of the merger, each of John Pappajohn, Derace Schaffer and David P. Wright purchased 60,000 shares, 40,000 shares and 50,000 shares, respectively, of common stock and Healthcare Ventures VII, L.P. and funds affiliated with MPM Capital L.P. each purchased an additional 125,000 shares of our common stock.

In connection with the merger, as previously disclosed, PharmAthene, its principal Stockholders and its advisors had been contacted by third party investors (collectively, the "New Investors") indicating an interest in making an investment in PharmAthene through the purchase of a significant number of shares of common stock in privately negotiated transactions with our existing Stockholders but required that, in connection with the purchases, they receive additional shares of our common stock from our founders and from certain Stockholders of our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation, receiving shares of our common stock as a result of the merger.

As a result, our principal Stockholders and management team entered into agreements to provide the New Investors with these additional shares contingent upon the approval and consummation of the merger and advised the New Investors that they were required to obtain the right to vote the shares to be purchased and vote any shares so purchased in favor of the proposals before the Special Meeting of Stockholders or obtain from the sellers of such shares a vote in favor of the proposals. The New Investors purchased, in the aggregate, 2,429,360 shares of our common stock. The purchase option agreements entered into by John Pappajohn, Derace Schaffer, Edward Berger, Wayne Schellhammer and Matthew Kinley, our founders and executive officers and directors prior to the merger (collectively, the "HAQ Insiders"), and the New Investors granting the New Investors options to acquire up to 1,266,752 shares of our common stock in the aggregate (which amount subject to reduction pro rata to the extent that less than 2,800,000 shares of our common stock was purchased by the New Investors); since only 2,429,360 shares of common stock were purchased by the New Investors in the aggregate, 1,099,070 shares are subject to option. The options were purchased for an aggregate purchase price of \$100 and the exercise price per share is \$.0001 per share. The options are not exercisable until the underlying shares are released from the escrow arrangement with Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company to which the HAQ Insiders are subject which expires on July 31, 2008. The HAQ Insiders entered into the escrow arrangement for all of their pre-IPO shares in connection with our initial public offering which was completed on July 28, 2005. The HAQ Insiders own an aggregate of 2,250,000 shares being held in escrow and own additional shares purchased pursuant to Rule 10b5-1 plans and purchased in the transactions described above which are not included in the escrow and were not sold to the New Investors. The option agreements also provide that neither the HAQ Insiders nor the New Investors may sell, transfer, pledge, assign or otherwise dispose of the options or shares of common stock underlying the options while such options are subject to the escrow agreement and while the options remain exercisable. The options are exercisable commencing upon the date that the pre-IPO shares are released from the escrow agreement and have a term of one year from such date.

The HAQ Insiders are entitled to certain registration rights for their IPO Shares, as described in our IPO prospectus and in the definitive proxy statement filed with the SEC on July 16, 2007. These rights provide that the holders of the majority of these pre-IPO shares will be entitled to require us, on up to two occasions, to register these shares. The holders of the majority of these shares may elect to exercise these registration rights at any time after the date on which the shares of common stock are released from the escrow. In addition, the HAQ Insiders have certain "piggy-back" registration rights on registration statements filed subsequent to the date on which these shares of common stock are released from escrow. We will bear the expenses incurred in connection with the filing of any such registration statements. The New Investors, as assignees of the HAQ Insiders of the pre-IPO shares, are entitled to these registration rights.

Pursuant to an assignment agreement, Healthcare Ventures VII, L.P, funds affiliated with MPM Capital L.P. and funds affiliated with Bear Steams Health Innoventures Management, LLC, all of which were Stockholders of PharmAthene US Corporation, agreed to assign to the New Investors an aggregate of up to 479,252 shares that would otherwise be received by them as part of the merger. Under the terms of the Merger Agreement, the number of shares issuable to the Stockholders of PharmAthene US Corporation could be adjusted upward by up to 337,500 shares of our common stock (the "Adjustment Shares") in the event that our Stockholders holding in excess of 5% of our IPO shares voted against the merger and sought to convert their shares. The total number of Adjustment

Shares was computed to be 197,844 shares. These Stockholders of PharmAthene US Corporation assigned their right to receive their pro rata portion of these Adjustment Shares (an aggregate of 300,688 shares) to the New Investors, as well as an additional 217,548 shares issuable to them, in the aggregate, under the Merger Agreement. The New Investors entered into lock up agreements in form substantially similar to that executed by all other PharmAthene US Corporation Stockholders in connection with the merger.

Also, Dr. Schaffer was a member of our Board of Directors prior to our merger and, currently, is a nominee for director to the Board provided that the Proposed Charter Amendment is approved. Pursuant to an informal, oral consulting arrangement with the Company, Dr. Schaffer attends meetings of the Board and, when called upon to do so, provides consultation in connection with those issues raised in which he has significant experience. In consideration of his efforts in this regard, in the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, he received a fee of \$5,000 and options to purchase 20,000 shares of the Company's common stock at an exercise price of \$5.25 with 50% of such options vesting at the date of grant and the remainder vesting on the first anniversary of the date of grant. See also the section entitled "Director Compensation" above.

#### Advisors

#### **Maxim Group LLC**

On January 8, 2007, we retained Maxim Group LLC ("Maxim"), a registered broker dealer firm, to act as our advisor in connection with the merger. In consideration for its services, we paid Maxim the sum of \$500,000. Maxim was retained to assist us in formulating and preparing presentation materials related to obtaining the Stockholder votes necessary to approve the merger, as well as coordinating with our management and the management of PharmAthene US Corporation meetings with our Stockholders and the investment community to discuss the merger. Maxim was not retained to, nor did it, assist our management with negotiating the terms of the merger and did not prepare any formal valuation analysis or fairness opinion for our Board.

Maxim also served as the lead underwriter in our IPO and was paid the balance of its underwriting commission of \$720,000 once the merger closed. In addition, Maxim holds an underwriter's unit purchase option to purchase up to 225,000 units from our IPO (comprised of a total of 225,000 shares and 225,000 warrants), which option would have expired without value if we do not complete a business combination. As a result, Maxim Group may have had an interest in having the merger completed.

#### Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc.

PharmAthene US Corporation entered into an agreement with Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. on November 2, 2006 whereby PharmAthene US Corporation retained Bear Stearns as its financial advisor in connection with the proposed transaction with us. As an initial payment against its total fee, Bear Stearns received an initial payment of \$500,000, and once the merger closed, the remainder of the total \$1,250,000 fee was paid.

The Bear Stearns Companies, Inc. is the parent company of Bear, Stearns & Co. Inc. and Bear Stearns Asset Management, Inc., which is the sole manager of Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Management, LLC. Funds affiliated with Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Management, LLC beneficially owns approximately 7.06% of the outstanding voting shares of us as of December 31, 2007. In addition, until March 2008, Elizabeth Czerepak, a member of our Board, was a member of Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Management, LLC.

# Cowen and Company, LLC.

Cowen and Company, LLC was engaged by PharmAthene US Corporation in connection with its general strategy and planning and to assist PharmAthene US Corporation in arranging meetings with potential investors. In consideration for its services, Cowen and Company received cash compensation

of \$500,000 and was reimbursed for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses. Cowen and Company was not retained to, and did not provide financial advice or services to either us or PharmAthene US Corporation in connection with the merger.

#### Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") requires our directors, executive officers, and persons who own more than 10% of our common stock to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership of our common stock with the SEC. Based solely on our review of copies of these reports filed with the SEC, we believe there has been compliance with all Section 16(a) filing requirements applicable to such directors, executive officers and 10% beneficial owners for 2007, except that the following officers, directors and/or 10% stockholders did not file certain reports under Section 16(a) on a timely basis during 2007: David P. Wright (one late reports regarding one transactions), Christopher C. Camut (one late report regarding initial disclosure of officer appointment), Fic I. Richman (one late report regarding initial disclosure of officer appointment), Joel McCleary (one late report regarding initial disclosure of director appointment), Valerie D. Riddle, M.D. (one late report regarding initial disclosure of officer appointment), wayne Morges (one late report regarding initial disclosure of officer appointment), and Francesca M. Cook (one late report regarding initial disclosure of officer appointment).

#### Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

The following table sets forth information, as of April 25, 2008, based on information obtained from the persons named below, with respect to the beneficial ownership of shares of the Company's common stock by (i) each person known by us to be the owner of more than 5% of our outstanding shares of the Company's common stock, (ii) each director, nominee for director and executive officer and (iii) all directors and executive officers as a group. Except as indicated in the footnotes to the table, the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power with respect to all shares of common stock shown as beneficially owned by them.

Name of Beneficial Owner(1)	Number of Shares Beneficially Owned	Percentage of Outstanding Shares(2)
Funds Affiliated with MPM Capital L.P.(3)	3,960,396	17.56%
Funds affiliated with Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Management, LLC(4)	1,584,750	7.09%
Healthcare Ventures VII, L.P.(5)	3,498,748	15.71%
Nexia Biotechnologies Ltd.(6)	1,715,974	7.77%
John Pappajohn(7)**	1,293,960	5.82%
David P. Wright(8)**	222,224	1.00%
James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D.(9)**	3,510,954	15.89%
Elizabeth Czerepak(10)**	1,584,750	7.09%
Steven St. Peter(11)**	10,551	*
John Gill(12)**	12,206	*
Christopher C. Camut(13)	54,042	*
Joel McCleary(14)**	116,289	*
Derace L. Schaffer, M.D.(15)**	1,173,960	5.13%
Valerie D. Riddle, M.D.(16)	74,726	*
Francesca M. Cook(17)	50,736	*
Eric I. Richman(18)	100,160	*
Wayne Morges(19)	39,763	*
Joan Fusco(20)	0	0%
All directors, nominees and executive officers as a group (14 persons)	8,244,321	35.64%

<sup>\*</sup> Less than 1.0%

- \*\* Director Nominee
- (1) Unless otherwise indicated in other footnotes, the address for each beneficial owner is c/o PharmAthene, Inc., One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401.
- (2) Based on 22,087,121 shares of common stock outstanding as of April 25, 2008. Beneficial ownership is determined in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. In computing the number of shares beneficially owned by a person and the percentage ownership of that person, shares of common stock underlying warrants, Notes or subject to options held by that person that are currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of the date hereof are deemed outstanding. Such shares, however, are not deemed outstanding for the purposes of computing the percentage ownership of any other person. Except as indicated in the following footnotes to the following table or pursuant to applicable community property laws, each Stockholder named in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the shares set forth opposite such Stockholder's name.
- Consists of 3,489,443 shares of common stock held by MPM BioVentures III-QP, L.P., MPM BioVentures III GmbH & Co. Beteiligungs KG, MPM BioVentures III, L.P., MPM BioVentures III Parallel Fund, L.P. and MPM Asset Management Investors 2004 BVIII LLC, and 470,953 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Convertible Notes in the principal amount of \$4,709,553.61. MPM BioVentures III GP, L.P. and MPM BioVentures III LLC are the direct and indirect general partners of MPM BioVentures III-QP, L.P., MPM BioVentures III GmbH & Co. Beteiligungs KG, MPM BioVentures III, L.P. and MPM BioVentures III Parallel Fund, L.P. The members of MPM BioVentures III LLC and MPM Asset Management Investors 2004 BVIII LLC are Luke Evnin, Ansbert Gadicke, Nicholas Galakatos, Dennis Henner, Nicholas Simon III, Michael Steinmetz and Kurt Wheeler, who disclaim beneficial ownership of these shares except to the extent of their proportionate pecuniary interest therein. Dr. Steven St. Peter, a member of our Board of Directors, is affiliated with the MPM Funds. The address for the MPM Funds is The John Hancock Tower, 200 Clarendon Street, 54th floor, Boston, MA, 02116.
- (4) Consists of 1,320,087 shares of common stock held by Bear Stearns Health Innoventures, L.P., Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Offshore, L.P., BX, L.P., Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Employee Fund, L.P. and BSHI Members, LLC, and 254,106 shares of common stock issuable upon the conversion of Notes in the principal amount of \$2,541,079.27 held by such funds. Also includes options to purchase 10,557 shares of common stock (representing the portion of an option to purchase a total of 21,104 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement) originally granted to Elizabeth Czerepak and assigned by her to these funds. Ms. Czerepak, a member of our Board of Directors, is a managing partner of Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Management, LLC, which is the sole general partner of Bear Stearns Health Innoventures, L.P., Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Offshore, L.P., BX, L.P. and Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Employee Fund, L.P., and BSHI Members, LLC co-invests with these funds. Ms. Czerepak disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares except to the extent of her proportionate pecuniary interest therein. The address for the Bear Stearns funds is 383 Madison Avenue, New York, New York, 10179. See Note 10.
- (5) Consists of 3,317,243 shares of common stock and 181,505 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Notes in the principal amount of \$1,815,056.92. Dr. James Cavanaugh, a member of our Board of Directors, is a general partner of HealthCare Partners VII, L.P., which is the general partner of HealthCare Ventures VII, L.P. In such capacity he may be deemed to share voting and investment power with respect to these shares. Dr. Cavanaugh disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares except to the extent of his proportionate pecuniary interest therein. The address for Healthcare Ventures VII, L.P. is 44 Nassau Street, Princeton, New Jersey 08542.
- (6) Nexia Biotechnologies Ltd. ("Nexia") is a Canadian public company. No one stockholder of Nexia owns more than 10% of Nexia or has voting and investment control over these shares. The address for Nexia is 70 St. George's Crescent, Edmonton, Alberta T5N 3M7.
- (7) Includes 141,960 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants with a fixed exercise price of \$6.00 per share and options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 20,000 shares of common stock that is currently

exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement). Includes 430,836 shares of common stock that are subject to an option entered into by Mr. Pappajohn and various funds on August 3, 2007 in connection with the merger which option becomes exercisable on July 31, 2008; as such, while Mr. Pappajohn has sole voting power over such shares he does not have sole investment power over such shares. Mr. Pappajohn is the Chairman of our Board of Directors.

- (8) Includes (i) options to purchase 115,089 shares of common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 906,130 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement) and (ii) 5,320 shares of common stock issuable upon conversion of Convertible Notes in the principal amount of \$53,204.86. Mr. Wright is our President and Chief Executive Officer and a member of our Board of Directors.
- (9) Dr. Cavanaugh is a general partner of HealthCare Partners VII, L.P., which is the general partner of HealthCare Ventures VII, L.P. In such capacity he may be deemed to share voting and investment power with respect to 3,498,748 shares of our common stock held by HealthCare Ventures VII, L.P. Dr. Cavanaugh disclaims beneficial ownership of the shares reported except to the extent of his proportionate pecuniary interest therein. Dr. Cavanaugh's beneficially owned shares also includes options to purchase 12,206 shares of our common stock (representing the portion of an option to purchase a total of 22,759 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of the date of this proxy statement). Dr. Cavanaugh's address is c/o Healthcare Ventures VII, L.P., 44 Nassau Street, Princeton, New Jersey 08542. Dr. Cavanaugh is a member of our Board of Directors.
- (10) Elizabeth Czerepak is a managing partner of Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Management, LLC, which is the sole general partner of Bear Stearns Health Innoventures, L.P., Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Offshore, L.P., BX, L.P. and Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Employee Fund, L.P., and BSHI Members, LLC co-invests with these funds. The shares reported are directly owned by Bear Stearns Health Innoventures, L.P., Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Offshore, L.P., BX, L.P., Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Employee Fund, L.P. and BSHI Members, LLC. In her capacity as a managing partner of Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Management, LLC, Ms. Czerepak may be deemed to share voting and investment power with respect to 1,584,750 shares of common stock beneficially owned by these funds. Ms. Czerepak disclaims beneficial ownership of these shares except to the extent of her proportionate pecuniary interest therein. See Note 4 above. Ms. Czerepak's address is c/o Bear Stearns Health Innoventures Management, LLC, 383 Madison Avenue, New York, NY 10179. Ms. Czerepak is a member of our Board of Directors.
- (11) Consists of options to purchase 10,551 shares of our common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 21,104 shares of our common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of the date of this proxy statement). Dr. St. Peter is a member of our Board of Directors.
- (12) Consists of options to purchase 12,206 shares of common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 22,759 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement). Mr. Gill is a member of our Board of Directors.
- (13) Consists of options to purchase 54,042 shares of common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 259,172 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement). Mr. Camut is our Chief Financial Officer.
- (14) Includes (i) options to purchase 12,206 shares of common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 22,759 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement), and (ii) 2,673 shares of common stock issuable upon the conversion of Notes in the principal amount of \$26,738.42. Mr. McCleary is a member of our Board of Directors.
- (15) Includes 141,960 shares of common stock issuable upon exercise of warrants with a fixed exercise price of \$6.00 per share and options to purchase 10,000 shares of common stock (representing the

portion of options to purchase a total of 20,000 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement). Includes 430,836 shares of common stock that are subject to an option entered into by Dr. Schaffer and various funds on August 3, 2007 in connection with the merger which option becomes exercisable on July 31, 2008; as such, while Dr. Schaffer has sole voting power over such shares he does not have sole investment power over such shares. Dr. Schaffer is a nominee for director to our Board of Directors.

- (16) Includes options to purchase 65,905 shares of common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 231,068 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement). Dr. Riddle is our Vice President, Medical Director.
- (17) Consists of options to purchase 45,635 shares of common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 162,547 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement). Ms. Cook is our Vice President, Policy and Government Affairs.
- (18) Includes options to purchase 99,346 shares of common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 312,473 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement) and 814 shares issuable upon conversion of Notes in the principal amount of \$8,142.11. Mr. Richman is our Senior Vice President, Business Development and Strategic Planning.
- (19) Consists of options to purchase 39,763 shares of our common stock (representing the portion of options to purchase a total of 138,432 shares of common stock that is currently exercisable or will become exercisable within 60 days of this proxy statement). Dr. Morges is our Vice President, Regulatory Affairs and Quality.
- (20) Dr. Fusco is our Vice President, Operations.

#### PROPOSAL 3

#### **Ratification of Independent Auditors**

#### General

Our Audit Committee has appointed Ernst & Young LLP ("E&Y") as our independent registered public accountants for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008. Although we are not required to have the Stockholders ratify the selection of E&Y as our independent auditors. We are doing so because we believe it is a matter of good corporate practice. If the Stockholders do not ratify the selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider whether or not to retain E&Y but may retain such independent auditors in any event. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee, in its discretion, may change the appointment at any time during the year if it determines that such a change would be in the best interests of PharmAthene and its Stockholders. Representatives of E&Y are expected to be present at the Annual Meeting with an opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and to be available to respond to appropriate questions.

On September 10, 2007, the Board terminated the engagement of LWBJ, LLP ("LWBJ"), as our independent registered public accountants and engaged E&Y, the independent registered public accountants of our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation, the accounting acquirer in the merger, as the Company's independent registered public accountants for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007. E&Y has been the independent registered accountants of PharmAthene US Corporation since its inception. The termination of the engagement of LWBJ followed the closing of the Merger and the decision to terminate LWBJ was approved by the Company's Audit Committee. Prior to September 10, 2007, LWBJ acted as our independent registered public accountants since our inception on April 25, 2005.

The report of LWBJ on the Company's balance sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 and the related statements of operations, stockholders' equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2006, for the period from April 25, 2005 (date of inception) to December 31, 2005, and from the period from April 25, 2005 (date of inception) to December 31, 2006, respectively, did not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion, nor was either qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles.

During the period from April 25, 2005 (inception) to December 31, 2006 and any subsequent interim period preceding the termination, there were no disagreements with LWBJ on any matter of accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of LWBJ would have caused LWBJ to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreements in connection with our report on the financial statements for such years or subsequent interim periods.

There were no reportable events as described in Item 304(a)(i)(v) of Regulation S-K during the period April 25, 2005 (inception) to December 31, 2006.

We provided a copy of the foregoing disclosures to LWBJ and requested that LWBJ furnish the Company with a letter addressed to the SEC stating whether or not it agreed with the Company's statements which were disclosed under Item 4.01(a) to our Form 8-K filed on September 14, 2007. A copy of the letter furnished by LWBJ in response to that request is filed as Exhibit 16.1 to that Form 8-K.

During the two most recent fiscal years and the interim period preceding the engagement of E&Y, the Company has not consulted with E&Y regarding either: (i) the application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit opinion that might be rendered on the Company's financial statements; or (ii) any matter that was either the subject of a disagreement or reportable event identified in paragraph (a)(1)(iv) of Item 304 of Regulation S-K.

#### **Votes Required**

Each share of our common stock has the right to cast one vote on the E&Y Appointment. Ratification and approval of the E&Y Appointment requires the favorable vote of a majority of the voting power of the shares of our common stock that are entitled to vote on the E&Y Appointment. As a result, abstentions from voting on the E&Y Appointment will have the same effect as a vote against the E&Y Appointment. However, broker non-votes are considered not to be present for voting on the E&Y Appointment and, consequently, do not count as votes for or against the E&Y Appointment and are not considered in calculating the number of votes necessary for approval.

#### Audit Fees, Audit Related Fees, Tax Fees and Other Fees

The following table sets forth the aggregate fees billed to the Company for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 by LWBJ and E&Y:

	Fiscal 2007		Fiscal 2006	
Audit Fees(1)	\$	338,720	\$	196,070
Audit Related Fees(2)	\$	291,305	\$	167,600
Tax Fees(3)	\$	15,880	\$	1,400
All Other Fees	\$	_	\$	
Total Fees	\$	645,885	\$	365,070

- (1) Audit Fees consist of fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of the Company's consolidated annual financial statements included in our Annual Report on Form 10-K and review of the interim consolidated financial statements included in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and services that are normally provided by our independent registered public accountants in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements. For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, fees for professional services provided by LWBJ were \$20,720 and \$31,070, respectively. Services provided by E&Y include services provided for privately-held PharmAthene, Inc. prior to the merger, which is now our wholly-owned subsidiary, PharmAthene US Corporation. For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, fees for professional services provided by E&Y were \$318,000 and \$165,000, respectively.
- (2) Audit-Related Fees consist of fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the performance of the audit or review of the Company's consolidated financial statements and are not reported under "Audit Fees." This category includes fees related to Sarbanes-Oxley compliance and work performed in connection with the merger with PharmAthene US Corporation. For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007, fees for professional services provided by LWBJ were \$15,305; no audit related services were provided by LWBJ in 2006. For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, fees for professional services provided by E&Y were \$276,000 and \$167,600, respectively.
- (3) Tax Fees were paid for services including assistance with tax compliance and the preparation of tax returns, tax consultation services, assistance in connection with tax audits and tax advice related to mergers, acquisitions and dispositions. For the fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, fees for professional services provided by LWBJ were \$15,880 and \$1,400, respectively. E&Y did not provide professional services in connection with tax related services in either of fiscal year 2007 or 2006.

#### Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services

Our Audit Committee has considered whether the provisions of services described in the table above are compatible with maintaining auditor independence. Our Audit Committee requires pre-approval of all audit and non-audit services in one of two methods, and each of the permitted non-auditing services described above has been pre-approved by the Audit Committee. Under the first method, the engagement to render the services would be entered into pursuant to pre-approval policies and procedures established by the Audit Committee, provided (i) the policies and procedures are detailed as to the services to be performed, (ii) the Audit Committee is informed of each service, and (iii) such policies and procedures do not include delegation of the Audit Committee's responsibilities under the Exchange Act to the Company's management. Under the second method, the engagement to render the services would be presented to and preapproved by the Audit Committee (subject to the de minimus exceptions for non-audit services described in Section 10A(i)(1)(B) of the Exchange Act that are approved by the Audit Committee prior to the completion of the audit). The Chairman of the Audit Committee has the authority to grant pre-approvals of audit and permissible non-audit services by the registered independent public accounting firm, provided that all preapprovals by the Chairman must be presented to the full Audit Committee at its next scheduled meeting.

#### Recommendation

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE RATIFICATION PROPOSAL.

#### PROPOSAL 4

Approval of Amendment to 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan to
Increase from 3,500,000 Shares to 4,600,000 Shares the Number of Shares Subject to the 2007 Plan
and to Add an Evergreen Provision Pursuant to which the Number of Shares Subject to
the 2007 Plan will Increase Automatically in Each Year Beginning in
2009 According to Certain Limits Set Forth in the 2007 Plan

#### Amendments to the 2007 Plan

Under the Company's 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan, we are authorized to issue 3,500,000 shares of common stock for issuance upon the exercise of awards to be granted pursuant to our 2007 Plan. Our 2007 Plan authorizes the grant of various stock, stock-related and cash awards to our employees. Our 2007 Plan was approved by our Stockholders at the Special Meeting of Stockholders held on August 3, 2007. As of March 31, 2008, there were 2,968,249 options and 232,807 restricted shares outstanding and unexercised under our 2007 Plan. Our Board of Directors recommends that the 2007 Plan be amended to increase from 3,500,000 shares to 4,600,000 shares the maximum number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan and to add an evergreen provision pursuant to which the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan will increase automatically in each year, beginning in 2009 and continuing through 2005 according to certain limits set forth in the 2007 Plan (the "Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment").

If approved, this increase to 4,600,000 shares and evergreen provision for automatic increases, without further Stockholder approval according to certain limits set forth in the 2007 Plan, would provide sufficient common stock to cover new grants to enable the Company to attract, retain and motivate directors, officers, employees and consultants by providing for or increasing their economic interests in the success of the Company, and allowing the Company flexibility to provide the most efficient administration of the 2007 Plan.

#### **Background**

On August 3, 2007, our Stockholders approved our 2007 Plan, which became effective on that date. Pursuant to the terms of our merger agreement, dated January 19, 2007 (the "Merger Agreement"), all outstanding options to purchase common stock of PharmAthene US Corporation, whether vested or unvested, were assumed by the Company upon the same terms and conditions existing as to such options except that each such option was converted into an option to purchase a specified number of shares of common stock of the Company at a per-share exercise price calculated by dividing the exercise price per share of the common stock of PharmAthene US Corporation at which each such option was exercisable prior to the merger by an agreed-upon exchange ratio as specified in the Merger Agreement. All of such options, as converted, are assumed under the 2007 Plan and the Company has reserved for issuance under the 2007 Plan a sufficient number of shares of common stock of the Company for delivery upon the exercise of options so assumed.

#### **Objectives of the Amendments**

Our Board of Directors has adopted a stock compensation strategy in order to provide incentives to employees and consultants which we expect will help to improve the Company's performance. The purpose of our 2007 Plan is to provide a means through which we may attract, retain and motivate employees, to significantly contribute toward our growth and profitability, to provide our executives, directors and other employees, and persons who, by their position, ability and diligence, are able to make important contributions to our growth and profitability, with an incentive to assist us in achieving our long-term corporate objectives and to provide such persons with an opportunity to acquire an equity interest in us.

Under the 2007 Plan, we may grant incentive and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, performance units, restricted stock awards and performance bonuses, or collectively, awards, to our officers and key employees, and those of our subsidiaries. In addition, the 2007 Plan authorizes the grant of non-qualified stock options and restricted stock awards to our directors and to any independent contractors and consultants who by their position, ability and diligence are able to make important contributions to our future growth and profitability. Generally, all classes of our employees are eligible to participate in our 2007 Plan.

The amendments to the 2007 Plan which we are recommending that Stockholders approve are an increase in the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan from 3,500,000 shares to 4,600,000 shares and the addition of an evergreen provision for additional shares to be issuable under the 2007 Plan on an annual basis. It is expected that this will allow the Company to continue to provide incentives not only for good performance but also for recruiting and retaining qualified personnel in the future.

As of March 31, 2008, approximately 298,944 shares remained available for grant under the 2007 Plan excluding any shares subject to the proposed share increase and approximately 104 persons were eligible to participate in the 2007 Plan including 54 new employees who joined the Company in connection with the Company's acquisition of the vaccines business of Avecia Biologics. The Board recognizes that it should be conservative in increasing the number of shares available for grant under the 2007 Plan. However, with the recent acquisition of the vaccines business of Avecia and the growth in the number of employees, the Board determined that the benefit of having additional shares available to provide incentive for PharmAthene's growing personnel headcount outweighed the potential adverse effect of additional dilution to Stockholders.

On April 28, 2008, by written consent the Board of Directors approved the 1,100,000 share increase in the number of shares of the Company's common stock authorized for issuance under the 2007 Plan and the addition of an evergreen provision for automatic annual increases in the shares available for issuance subject to certain limitations. If our Stockholders approve the 2007 Plan, as amended and restated, 1,100,000 additional shares will be available for issuance under the 2007 Plan and, beginning in 2009 and continuing through 2015, the number of shares available under the 2007 Plan will automatically increase each year, subject to the terms and conditions described below.

#### 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan

The following is a summary of the material provisions of our 2007 Plan and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the complete text of our 2007 Plan, a copy of which is attached to this proxy statement as Appendix B.

#### Stock Subject to the 2007 Plan

As currently in effect, we have reserved a maximum of 3,500,000 shares of our authorized common stock for issuance upon the exercise of awards to be granted pursuant to our 2007 Plan. If the Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment is approved by our Stockholders, the number of shares of our common stock that may be awarded under the 2007 Plan will be increased from 3,500,000 shares to 4,600,000 shares (which include the 1,100,000 share increase approved by our Board of Directors) plus an annual automatic increase as of the first day of each fiscal year beginning in 2009 and continuing until 2015 equal to the lesser of (i) 1,100,000 shares, (ii) 2.5% of the outstanding shares of our common stock as of the end of our immediately preceding fiscal year, and (iii) any lesser number of shares determined by our Board of Directors; provided, however, that the aggregate number of shares available for issuance pursuant to such increases shall not exceed a total of 5,700,000 shares (which reflects the average of seven years of increases of 1,100,000 shares and seven years of issuances of 2.5% of the Company's current outstanding or 552,176 shares).

Each share issued under an option or under a restricted stock award will be counted against the limits then in effect under the 2007 Plan. Shares to be delivered at the time a stock option is exercised or at the time a restricted stock award is made shall be available from authorized but unissued shares or from stock previously issued but which we have reacquired and hold in our treasury. Shares authorized for issuance in any given year but which are not issued in that year will remain available for future issuance under the proposed amended and restated 2007 Plan. Shares of common stock covered by an award granted under the 2007 Plan will not be counted as used unless and until they are actually issued and delivered to a participant. Shares related to awards granted under the 2007 Plan that lapse, are canceled or forfeited, settled for cash or otherwise terminated and shares withheld by or tendered to us in connection with the exercise of an option or other award granted under the 2007 Plan or in connection with the satisfaction of tax withholding obligations relating to awards or exercises of options or other awards are available for grant under the 2007 Plan.

In the event of any change in our outstanding common stock by reason of any reorganization, recapitalization, stock split, stock dividend, combination of shares, asset acquisition, consolidation, issuance of rights or other similar transactions, the number of shares of our common stock which may be issued upon exercise of outstanding options, and the exercise price of options previously granted under our 2007 Plan, will be proportionally adjusted to prevent any enlargement or dilution of the rights of holders of previously granted options as may be appropriate to reflect any such transaction or event.

#### Administration

Our Board established a Compensation Committee which, among other duties, administers the 2007 Plan. The Compensation Committee is composed of three independent members of the Board, all of whom are "non-employee directors" within the meaning of Rule 16b-3(b)(3) of the Exchange Act. Pursuant to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, two of the three members of the Compensation Committee are Noteholder representatives. Members of our Compensation Committee serve at the pleasure of our Board. In connection with the administration of our 2007 Plan, the Compensation Committee, with respect to awards to be made to any person who is not one of our directors:

- determines which employees and other persons will be granted awards under our 2007 Plan;
- grants the awards to those selected to participate;
- determines the exercise price for options; and
- prescribes any limitations, restrictions and conditions upon any awards, including the vesting conditions of awards.

With respect to stock options or restricted stock awards made to any of our directors, the Compensation Committee makes recommendations to our Board as to:

- which of such persons should be granted stock options, restricted stock awards, performance units or stock appreciation rights;
- the terms of proposed grants of awards to those selected by our Board of Directors to participate;
- the exercise price for options; and
- any limitations, restrictions and conditions upon any awards.

Any grant of awards to any of directors under our 2007 Plan must be approved by our Board of Directors.

In addition, the Compensation Committee:

- interprets our 2007 Plan; and
- makes all other determinations and take all other action that may be necessary or advisable to implement and administer our 2007 Plan.

#### **Types of Awards**

Our 2007 Plan permits the Compensation Committee to grant the following types of awards.

Stock Options. Stock options are contractual rights entitling an optionee who has been granted a stock option to purchase a stated number of shares of our common stock at an exercise price per share determined at the date of the grant. Options are evidenced by stock option agreements with the respective optionees. The exercise price for each stock option granted under our 2007 Plan is determined by our Board of Directors or a committee of the Board at the time of the grant, but is not less than fair market value on the date of the grant. Our Board of Directors or a committee of the Board also determines the duration of each option; however, no option may be exercisable more than ten years after the date the option is granted. Within the foregoing limitations, the Board of Directors or committee of the Board may, in its discretion, impose limitations on exercise of all or some options granted under our 2007 Plan, such as specifying minimum periods of time after grant during which options may not be exercised. Options granted under our 2007 Plan will vest at rates specified in the option agreement at the time of grant; however, all options granted under our 2007 Plan vest upon the occurrence of a change of control, as defined in the 2007 Plan. Our 2007 Plan also contains provisions for our Board of Directors or a committee of the Board to provide in the participants' option award agreements for accelerating the right of an individual employee to exercise his or her stock option or restricted stock award in the event of retirement or other termination of employment. No cash consideration is payable to us in exchange for the grant of options.

Our 2007 Plan provides that the stock options may either be Incentive Stock Options within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), or Non-Qualified Options, which are stock options other than Incentive Stock Options within the meaning of Sections 422 of the Code. Incentive Stock Options may be granted only to our employees or employees of our subsidiaries, and must be granted at a per share option price not less than the fair market value of our common stock on the date the Incentive Stock Option is granted. In the case of an Incentive Stock Option granted to a Stockholder who owns shares of our outstanding stock of all classes representing more that 10% of the total combined voting power of all of our outstanding stock of all classes entitled to vote in the election of directors, the per share option price must be not less than 110% of the fair market value of one share of our common stock on the date the Incentive Stock Option is granted and the term of such option may not exceed five years. As required by the Code, the aggregate fair market value, determined at the time an Incentive Stock Option is granted, of our common stock with respect to which Incentive Stock Options may be exercised by an optionee for the first time during any calendar year under all of our incentive stock option plans may not exceed \$100,000.

The exercise price for Non-Qualified Options may not be less than the fair market value of our common stock on the date the Non-Qualified Option is granted. Non-Qualified Options are not subject to any of the restrictions described above with respect to Incentive Stock Options. The exercise price of stock options may be paid in cash, in whole shares of our common stock, in a combination of cash and our common stock, or in such other form of consideration as our Board of Directors or the committee of the Board may determine, equal in value to the exercise price. However, only shares of our common stock which the option holder has held for at least six months on the date of the exercise may be surrendered in payment of the exercise price for the options. In no event may a stock option be exercised after the expiration of its stated term.

Stock Appreciation Rights. A stock appreciation right permits the grantee to receive an amount (in cash, common stock, or a combination thereof) equal to the number of stock appreciation rights exercised by the grantee multiplied by the excess of the fair market value of our common stock on the exercise date over the stock appreciation rights' exercise price. Stock appreciation rights may or may not be granted in connection with the grant of an option. The exercise price of stock appreciation rights granted under the 2007 Plan is determined by the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board; provided, however, that such exercise price cannot be less than the fair market value of a share of common stock on a date the stock appreciation right is granted (subject to adjustments). A stock appreciation right may be exercised in whole or in such installments and at such times as determined by the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board.

Restricted Stock. Restricted shares of our common stock may be granted under our 2007 Plan subject to such terms and conditions, including forfeiture and vesting provisions, and restrictions against sale, transfer or other disposition as the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board determines to be appropriate at the time of making the award. In addition, the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board may direct that share certificates representing restricted stock be inscribed with a legend as to the restrictions on sale, transfer or other disposition, and may direct that the certificates, along with a stock power signed in blank by the grantee, be delivered to and held by us until such restrictions lapse. The Board of Directors or a committee of the Board, in its discretion, may provide in the award agreement for a modification or acceleration of shares of restricted stock in the event of permanent disability, retirement or other termination of employment or business relationship with the grantee.

Performance Units. The 2007 Plan permits grants of performance units, which are rights to receive cash payments equal to the difference (if any) between the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant and its fair market value on the date of exercise of the award, except to the extent otherwise provided by the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board or required by law. Such awards are subject to the fulfillment of conditions that may be established by the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board including, without limitation, the achievement of performance targets based upon the factors described above relating to restricted stock awards.

*Performance Bonus.* The 2007 Plan permits grants of performance bonuses, which may be paid in cash, common stock or combination thereof as determined by the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board. The maximum value of performance bonus awards granted under the 2007 Plan shall be established by the compensation committee at the time of the grant. An employee's receipt of such amount will be contingent upon achievement of performance targets during the performance period established by the compensation committee. The performance targets will be determined by the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board based upon the factors described above relating to restricted stock awards. Following the end of the performance period, the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board will determine the achievement of the performance targets for such performance period. Payment may be made within 60 days of such determination. Any payment made in shares of common stock will be based upon the fair market value of the common stock on the payment date.

#### Transferability

With the exception of Non-Qualified Stock Options, awards are not transferable other than by will or by the laws of descent and distribution. Non-Qualified Stock Options are transferable on a limited basis. Restricted stock awards are not transferable during the restriction period.

#### **Change of Control Event**

The 2007 Plan provides that in the event of a change of control event the Board shall have the discretion to determine whether and to what extent to accelerate the vesting, exercise or payment of an Award.

#### Termination of Employment/Relationship

Awards granted under our 2007 Plan that have not vested will generally terminate immediately upon the grantee's termination of employment or business relationship with us or any of our subsidiaries for any reason other than retirement with our consent, disability or death. The Board of Directors or a committee of the Board may determine at the time of the grant that an award agreement should contain provisions permitting the grantee to exercise the stock options for any stated period after such termination, or for any period the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board determines to be advisable after the grantee's employment or business relationship with us terminates by reason of retirement, disability, death or termination without cause. Incentive Stock Options will, however, terminate no more than three months after termination of the optionee's employment, twelve months after termination of the optionee's employment due to death. The Board of Directors or a committee of the Board may permit a deceased optionee's stock options to be exercised by the optionee's executor or heirs during a period acceptable to the Board of Directors or a committee of the Board following the date of the optionee's death but such exercise must occur prior to the expiration date of the stock option.

#### **Dilution**; Substitution

As described above, our 2007 Plan provides protection against substantial dilution or enlargement of the rights granted to holders of awards in the event of stock splits, recapitalizations, asset acquisitions, consolidations, reorganizations or similar transactions. New award rights may, but need not, be substituted for the awards granted under our 2007 Plan, or our obligations with respect to awards outstanding under our 2007 Plan may, but need not, be assumed by another corporation in connection with any asset acquisition, consolidation, acquisition, separation, reorganization, sale or distribution of assets, liquidation or like occurrence in which we are involved. In the event that our 2007 Plan is assumed, the stock issuable with respect to awards previously granted under our 2007 Plan shall thereafter include the stock of the corporation granting such new option rights or assuming our obligations under the 2007 Plan.

#### Amendment of the 2007 Plan

Our Board may amend our 2007 Plan at any time. However, without Stockholder approval, our 2007 Plan may not be amended in a manner that would:

- increase the number of shares that may be issued under our 2007 Plan;
- materially modify the requirements for eligibility for participation in our 2007 Plan;
- materially increase the benefits to participants provided by our 2007 Plan; or
- otherwise disqualify our 2007 Plan for coverage under Rule 16b-3 promulgated under the Exchange Act.

Awards previously granted under our 2007 Plan may not be impaired or affected by any amendment of our 2007 Plan, without the consent of the affected grantees.

#### **Accounting Treatment**

Under generally accepted accounting principles with respect to the financial accounting treatment of stock options used to compensate employees, upon the grant of stock options under our 2007 Plan, the fair value of the options will be measured on the date of grant and this amount will be recognized as a compensation expense ratably over the vesting period. Stock appreciation rights granted under the 2007 Plan must be settled in common stock. Therefore, stock appreciation rights granted under the 2007 Plan will receive the same accounting treatment as options. The cash we receive upon the exercise of stock options will be reflected as an increase in our capital. No additional compensation expense will be recognized at the time stock options are exercised, although the issuance of shares of common stock upon exercise may reduce basic earnings per share, as more shares of our common stock would then be outstanding.

When we make a grant of restricted stock, the fair value of the restricted stock award at the date of grant will be determined and this amount will be recognized over the vesting period of the award. The fair value of a restricted stock award is equal to the fair market value of our common stock on the date of grant.

Due to consideration of the accounting treatment of stock options and restricted stock awards by various regulatory bodies, it is possible that the present accounting treatment may change.

#### Tax Treatment

The following is a brief description of the federal income tax consequences, under existing law, with respect to awards that may be granted under our 2007 Plan.

Incentive Stock Options. An optionee will not realize any taxable income upon the grant or the exercise of an Incentive Stock Option. However, the amount by which the fair market value of the shares covered by the Incentive Stock Option (on the date of exercise) exceeds the option price paid will be an item of tax preference to which the alternative minimum tax may apply, depending on each optionee's individual circumstances. If the optionee does not dispose of the shares of our common stock acquired by exercising an Incentive Stock Option within two years from the date of the grant of the Incentive Stock Option or within one year after the shares are transferred to the optionee, when the optionee later sells or otherwise disposes of the stock, any amount realized by the optionee in excess of the option price will be taxed as a long-term capital gain and any loss will be recognized as a long-term capital loss. We generally will not be entitled to an income tax deduction with respect to the grant or exercise of an Incentive Stock Option.

If any shares of our common stock acquired upon exercise of an Incentive Stock Option are resold or disposed of before the expiration of the prescribed holding periods, the optionee would realize ordinary income, instead of capital gain. The amount of the ordinary income realized would be equal to the lesser of (i) the excess of the fair market value of the stock on the exercise date over the option price; or (ii) in the case of a taxable sale or exchange, the amount of the gain realized. Any additional gain would be either long-term or short-term capital gain, depending on whether the applicable capital gain holding period has been satisfied. In the event of a premature disposition of shares of stock acquired by exercising an Incentive Stock Option, we would be entitled to a deduction equal to the amount of ordinary income realized by the optionee.

Non-Qualified Options. An optionee will not realize any taxable income upon the grant of a Non-Qualified Option. At the time the optionee exercises the Non-Qualified Option, the amount by which the fair market value at the time of exercise of the shares covered by the Non-Qualified Option exceeds the option price paid upon exercise will constitute ordinary income to the optionee in the year of such exercise. We will be entitled to a corresponding income tax deduction in the year of exercise equal to the ordinary income recognized by the optionee. If the optionee thereafter sells such shares, the difference between any amount realized on the sale and the fair market value of the shares at the time of exercise will be taxed to the optionee as capital gain or loss, short- or long-term depending on the length of time the stock was held by the optionee before sale.

Stock Appreciation Rights. A participant realizes no taxable income and we are not entitled to a deduction when a stock appreciation right is granted. Upon exercising a stock appreciation right, a participant will realize ordinary income in an amount equal to the fair market value of the shares received minus any amount paid for the shares, and we will be entitled to a corresponding deduction. A participant's tax basis in the shares of common stock received upon exercise of a stock appreciation right will be equal to the fair market value of such shares on the exercise date, and the participant's holding period for such shares will begin at that time. Upon sale of the shares of common stock received upon exercise of a stock appreciation right, the participant will realize short-term or long-term capital gain or loss, depending upon whether the shares have been held for more than one year. The

amount of such gain or loss will be equal to the difference between the amount realized in connection with the sale of the shares, and the participant's tax basis in such shares.

Restricted Stock Award. A recipient of restricted stock generally will not recognize any taxable income until the shares of restricted stock become freely transferable or are no longer subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture. At that time, the excess of the fair market value of the restricted stock over the amount, if any, paid for the restricted stock is taxable to the recipient as ordinary income. If a recipient of restricted stock subsequently sells the shares, he or she generally will realize capital gain or loss in the year of such sale in an amount equal to the difference between the net proceeds from the sale and the price paid for the stock, if any, plus the amount previously included in income as ordinary income with respect to such restricted shares.

A recipient has the opportunity, within certain limits, to fix the amount and timing of the taxable income attributable to a grant of restricted stock. Section 83(b) of the Code permits a recipient of restricted stock, which is not yet required to be included in taxable income, to elect, within 30 days of the award of restricted stock, to include in income immediately the difference between the fair market value of the shares of restricted stock at the date of the award and the amount paid for the restricted stock, if any. The election permits the recipient of restricted stock to fix the amount of income that must be recognized by virtue of the restricted stock grant. We will be entitled to a deduction in the year the recipient is required (or elects) to recognize income by virtue of receipt of restricted stock, equal to the amount of taxable income recognized by the recipient.

Performance Units and Performance Bonuses. A participant realizes no taxable income and we are not entitled to a deduction when performance units or performance bonuses are awarded. When the performance units or performance bonuses vest and become payable upon the achievement of the performance objectives, the participant will realize ordinary income equal to the amount of cash received or the fair market value of the shares received minus any amount paid for the shares, and we will be entitled to a corresponding deduction. A participant's tax basis in shares of common stock received upon payment will be equal to the fair market value of such shares when the participant receives them. Upon sale of the shares, the participant will realize short-term or long-term capital gain or loss, depending upon whether the shares have been held for more than one year at the time of sale. Such gain or loss will be equal to the difference between the amount realized upon the sale of the shares and the tax basis of the shares in the participant's hands.

Section 162(m) of the Code. Section 162(m) of the Code precludes a public corporation from taking a deduction for annual compensation in excess of \$1.0 million paid to its chief executive officer or any of its four other highest-paid officers. However, compensation that qualifies under Section 162(m) of the Code as "performance-based" is specifically exempt from the deduction limit. Based on Section 162(m) of the Code and the regulations thereunder, our ability to deduct compensation income generated in connection with the exercise of stock options or stock appreciation rights granted under the 2007 Plan should not be limited by Section 162(m) of the Code. Further, we believe that compensation income generated in connection with performance awards granted under the 2007 Plan should not be limited by Section 162(m) of the Code. The 2007 Plan has been designed to provide flexibility with respect to whether restricted stock awards or performance bonuses will qualify as performance-based compensation under Section 162(m) of the Code and, therefore, be exempt from the deduction limit. If the vesting restrictions relating to any such award are based solely upon the satisfaction of one of the performance goals set forth in the 2007 Plan, then we believe that the compensation expense relating to such an award will be deductible by us if the awards become vested. However, compensation expense deductions relating to such awards will be subject to the Section 162(m) deduction limitation if such awards become vested based upon any other criteria set forth in such award (such as the occurrence of a change in control or vesting based upon continued employment with us).

Certain Awards Deferring or Accelerating the Receipt of Compensation. Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code, enacted as part of the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004, imposes certain new requirements applicable to "nonqualified deferred compensation plans." If a nonqualified deferred compensation plan subject to Section 409A fails to meet, or is not operated in accordance with, these new requirements, then all compensation deferred under the plan may become immediately taxable. Stock appreciation rights and deferred stock awards which may be granted under the plan may constitute deferred compensation subject to the Section 409A requirements. It is our intention that any award agreement governing awards subject to Section 409A will comply with these new rules.

#### Votes Required

Each share of our common stock has the right to cast one vote on the Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment. Ratification and approval of the Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment requires the favorable vote of a majority of the voting power of the shares of our common stock that are entitled to vote on the Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment. As a result, abstentions from voting on the Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment and broker non-votes will have the same effect as a vote against the Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment.

If the Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment is approved, Section 1.3 of our 2007 Plan will be replaced in its entirety with the following:

"Section 1.3 Shares Subject to the Plan. Subject to the limitations set forth in the Plan and to adjustment from time to time as provided in Article X, the number of shares of the Company's common stock, par value \$.0001 per share (the "Common Stock"), available for issuance shall be:

- (a) 4,600,000 shares; plus
- (b) an annual increase to be added as of the first day of the Company's fiscal year, beginning in 2009 and occurring each year thereafter through 2015, equal to the least of (i) 1,100,000 shares, (ii) 2.5% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the end of the Company's immediately preceding fiscal year, and (iii) any lesser number of shares determined by the Board; *provided*, *however*, that the aggregate number of shares available for issuance pursuant to such increases shall not exceed a total of 5,700,000 shares.

Each share issued under an Option or under a Restricted Stock Award will be counted against the limits then in effect under this Section 1.3. Shares to be delivered at the time an Option is exercised or at the time a Restricted Stock Award is made shall be available from authorized but unissued shares or from shares of stock previously issued but which have been reacquired and held in treasury. Shares authorized for issuance under the Plan in any given year but which are not issued in that year will remain available for future issuance under the proposed amended and restated Plan. Shares of Common Stock covered by an Award granted under the Plan will not be counted as used unless and until they are actually issued and delivered to a participant. Shares related to Awards granted under the Plan that lapse, are canceled or forfeited, settled for cash or otherwise terminated and shares withheld by or tendered to us in connection with the exercise of an Option or other Award granted under the Plan or in connection with the satisfaction of tax withholding obligations relating to Awards or exercises of Options or other Awards are available for grant under the Plan."

If approved by our Stockholders, the Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment will become effective immediately. The full text of our 2007 Plan, as amended by the Proposed 2007 Plan Amendment, is attached hereto as *Appendix B*. The basic features of our 2007 Plan summarized above are qualified in their entirety by reference to the full text of our 2007 Plan.

### Recommendation

OUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS VOTE "FOR" THE PROPOSED 2007 PLAN AMENDMENT.

#### **Other Information**

#### **Annual Report on Form 10-K**

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K (including financial statements and the financial statement schedules but without exhibits) for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 accompanies this proxy statement but does not constitute a part of our proxy solicitation materials. We will furnish additional copies of our Form 10-K, without charge, to any person whose vote is solicited by this proxy statement upon written request to the following address: PharmAthene, Inc., One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401, c/o Corporate Secretary. In addition, upon written request, we will furnish a copy of any exhibit to our Form 10-K to any person whose vote is solicited by this proxy statement upon payment of our reasonable expenses incurred in connection with providing the copy of the exhibit.

#### **Key Corporate Governance Documents**

We maintain an internet website at www.pharmathene.com. Our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K, and any amendment to those reports, are available free of charge on our website under the heading "Investor Relations" (see "SEC Filings") immediately after they are filed with or furnished to the SEC. PharmAthene's Code of Ethics and Business Conduct and Charters of the Committees of the Board of Directors are also available free of charge on our website under the heading "Investor Relations" (see "Corporate Governance Information"), or by writing to PharmAthene, Inc., One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401, c/o Corporate Secretary. PharmAthene's Code of Ethics and Business Conduct applies to all directors, officers (including the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Controller) and employees. Amendments to or waivers of the Code of Ethics and Business Conduct granted to any of the Company's directors or executive officers will be published on our website within five business days of such amendment or waiver.

#### Stockholder Proposals for 2009 Annual Meeting

In order for a Stockholder proposal to be considered for inclusion in our proxy statement for the 2009 Annual Meeting pursuant to Rule 14a-8 of the SEC, the proposal must be received at the Company's offices no later than the close of business on January 14, 2009. Proposals submitted thereafter will be opposed as not timely filed. Any Stockholder who wishes to submit a Stockholder proposal should send it to PharmAthene, Inc., One Park Place, Suite 450, Annapolis, MD 21401, c/o Corporate Secretary.

#### Householding

Beneficial owners of common stock who share a single address may receive only one copy of the Notice or the proxy materials, as the case may be, unless their broker, bank or nominee has received contrary instructions from any beneficial owner at that address. This practice, known as "householding," is designed to reduce printing and mailing costs. If any beneficial shareowner(s) at such an address wish to discontinue householding and receive a separate copy of the Notice or the proxy materials, as the case may be, they may contact Broadridge, either by calling (800) 579-1639, or by writing to Broadridge, Householding Department, 51 Mercedes Way, Edgewood, New York, 11717.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

John Pappajohn Chairman

#### Appendix A

#### CERTIFICATE OF AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED CERTIFICATE OF INCORPORATION OF PHARMATHENE, INC.

PharmAthene, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under and by virtue of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware (the "Corporation"), does hereby certify as follows:

**FIRST:** That at a meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation resolutions were duly adopted setting forth a proposed amendment of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Corporation, declaring said amendment to be advisable and calling for a vote of the stockowners of the Corporation. The resolutions setting forth the proposed amendment is as follows:

WHEREAS, this Board of Directors deems it advisable and in the best interests of the Corporation for the Corporation to amend its Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase from seven to eight the maximum number of directors that may serve on the Board of Directors for so long as at least 30% of the aggregate principal amount of the \$12,500,000 8% convertible notes ("Notes") issued on August 3, 2007 remains outstanding (the "Charter Amendment") and, upon receipt of the consent of the holders of the Notes and the approval of the Stockholders, to file the Certificate of Amendment, substantially in the form presented with this Written Consent as Exhibit A, which strikes Paragraph A of Article Sixth of our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and replaces it with the following new Paragraph A of Article Sixth:

"A. the Corporation shall maintain a Board of Directors consisting of no more than eight (8) individuals and each committee of the Board of Directors shall have no more than three (3) members;"

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, the form, terms and provisions of the Charter Amendment be, and they hereby are, in all respects approved, subject to approval of the Stockholders; and it is

FURTHER RESOLVED, that in furtherance of the foregoing resolution, the Charter Amendment be presented to the holders of the Notes for their consent and be included in the proxy statement for the Annual Meeting of Stockholders together with the recommendation of this Board of Directors that the Stockholders vote "for" the Charter Amendment in accordance with the provisions of the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation and Delaware law.

**SECOND:** That thereafter, pursuant to resolution of its Board of Directors, a consent was received from the holders of at least two-thirds of the outstanding principal amount of the 8% convertible notes (the "Notes") in accordance with the Notes, the Corporation's Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, and the Note Exchange Agreement, dated August 3, 2007, by and among the Corporation (f/k/a Healthcare Acquisition Corp.), PharmAthene, Inc. (n/k/a PharmAthene US Corporation) and the Corporation's noteholders (the "Note Exchange Agreement"), and a proxy was sent to the Stockholders of the Corporation in accordance with Section 222 of the DGCL and a majority of the issued and outstanding voting shares of the Corporation were voted in favor of such amendment.

**THIRD:** That said amendment was duly approved in accordance with the provisions of Section 242 of the Delaware General Corporation Law.

IN WITNESS WHER Executive Officer on this	REOF, Pharm day of	Athene, Inc. ha	s caused this Certificate of Amendment to be executed in its name and on its behalf by its Chief
			PHARMATHENE, INC.
			By:
			Name: David P. Wright Title: Chief Executive Officer
			A-2

#### Appendix B

#### PHARMATHENE, INC.

(f/k/a Healthcare Acquisition Corp.)

#### 2007 LONG-TERM INCENTIVE COMPENSATION PLAN

(As amended and restated on

, 2008)

#### ARTICLE I PURPOSE

Section 1.1 Purpose. This 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the "Plan") is established by Healthcare Acquisition Corp., a Delaware corporation (the "Company"), to create incentives which are designed to motivate Participants to put forth maximum effort toward the success and growth of the Company and to enable the Company to attract and retain experienced individuals who by their position, ability and diligence are able to make important contributions to the Company's success. Toward these objectives, the Plan provides for the grant of Options, Restricted Stock Awards, Stock Appreciation Rights ("SARs"), Performance Units and Performance Bonuses to Eligible Employees and the grant of Nonqualified Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards, SARs and Performance Units to Consultants and Eligible Directors, subject to the conditions set forth in the Plan.

Section 1.2 Establishment. The Plan is effective as of January 18, 2007 and for a period of ten years thereafter. The Plan shall continue in effect until all matters relating to the payment of Awards and administration of the Plan have been settled. The Plan is subject to approval by the Company's stockholders in accordance with applicable law which approval must occur within the period ending twelve months after the date the Plan is adopted by the Board. Pending such approval by the stockholders, Awards under the Plan may be granted, but no such Awards may be exercised prior to receipt of stockholder approval. In the event stockholder approval is not obtained within a twelve- month period, all Awards granted shall be void.

Section 1.3 Shares Subject to the Plan. Subject to the limitations set forth in the Plan and to adjustment from time to time as provided in Article X, the number of shares of the Company's common stock, par value \$.0001 per share (the "Common Stock"), available for issuance under the Plan shall be:

- (a) 4,600,000 shares; plus
- (b) an annual increase to be added as of the first day of the Company's fiscal year, beginning in 2009 and occurring each year thereafter through 2015, equal to the least of (i) 1,100,000 shares, (ii) 2.5% of the outstanding shares of Common Stock as of the end of the Company's immediately preceding fiscal year, and (iii) any lesser number of shares determined by the Board; provided, however, that the aggregate number of shares available for issuance pursuant to such increases shall not exceed a total of 5,700,000 shares.

Each share issued under an Option or under a Restricted Stock Award will be counted against the limits then in effect under this Section 1.3. Shares to be delivered at the time an Option is exercised or at the time a Restricted Stock Award is made shall be available from authorized but unissued shares or from shares of stock previously issued but which have been reacquired and held in treasury. Shares authorized for issuance under the Plan in any given year but which are not issued in that year will remain available for future issuance under the proposed amended and restated Plan. Shares of Common Stock covered by an Award granted under the Plan will not be counted as used unless and until they are actually issued and delivered to a participant. Shares related to Awards granted under the Plan that lapse, are canceled or forfeited, settled for cash or otherwise terminated and shares withheld by or tendered to us in connection with the exercise of an Option or other Award granted

under the Plan or in connection with the satisfaction of tax withholding obligations relating to Awards or exercises of Options or other Awards are available for grant under the Plan.

# ARTICLE II DEFINITIONS

*Section 2.1 "Account*" means the recordkeeping account established by the Company to which will be credited an Award of Performance Units to a Participant.

Section 2.2 "Affiliated Entity" means any corporation, partnership, limited liability company or other form of legal entity in which a majority of the partnership or other similar interest thereof is owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by the Company or one or more of its Subsidiaries or Affiliated Entities or a combination thereof. For purposes hereof, the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliated Entity shall be deemed to have a majority ownership interest in a partnership or limited liability company if the Company, such Subsidiary or Affiliated Entity shall be allocated a majority of partnership or limited liability company gains or losses or shall be or control a managing director or a general partner of such partnership or limited liability company.

Section 2.3 "Award" means, individually or collectively, any Option, Restricted Stock Award, SAR, Performance Unit or Performance Bonus granted under the Plan to an Eligible Employee by the Board or any Nonqualified Stock Option, Performance Unit, SAR or Restricted Stock Award granted under the Plan to a Consultant or an Eligible Director by the Board pursuant to such terms, conditions, restrictions, and/or limitations, if any, as the Board may establish by the Award Agreement or otherwise.

Section 2.4 "Award Agreement" means any written instrument that establishes the terms, conditions, restrictions, and/or limitations applicable to an Award in addition to those established by this Plan and by the Board's exercise of its administrative powers.

Section 2.5 "Board" means the Board of Directors of the Company and, if the Board has appointed a Committee as provided in Section 3.1, the term "Board" shall include such Committee.

Section 2.6 "Change of Control Event" means each of the following:

- (i) Any transaction in which shares of voting securities of the Company representing more than 50% of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the Company are issued by the Company, or sold or transferred by the stockholders of the Company as a result of which those persons and entities who beneficially owned voting securities of the Company representing more than 50% of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the Company immediately prior to such transaction cease to beneficially own voting securities of the Company representing more than 50% of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the Company immediately after such transaction;
- (ii) The merger or consolidation of the Company with or into another entity as a result of which those persons and entities who beneficially owned voting securities of the Company representing more than 50% of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the Company immediately prior to such merger or consolidation cease to beneficially own voting securities of the Company representing more than 50% of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the surviving corporation or resulting entity immediately after such merger of consolidation; or
- (iii) The sale of all or substantially all of the Company's assets to an entity of which those persons and entities who beneficially owned voting securities of the Company representing more than 50% of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the Company

- immediately prior to such asset sale do not beneficially own voting securities of the purchasing entity representing more than 50% of the total combined voting power of all outstanding voting securities of the purchasing entity immediately after such asset sale.
- Section 2.7 "Code" means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. References in the Plan to any section of the Code shall be deemed to include any amendments or successor provisions to such section and any regulations under such section.
  - Section 2.8 "Committee" means the Committee appointed by the Board as provided in Section 3.1.
- Section 2.9 "Common Stock" means the common stock, par value \$.0001 per share, of the Company, and after substitution, such other stock as shall be substituted therefore as provided in Article X.
  - Section 2.10 "Consultant" means any person who is engaged by the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliated Entity to render consulting or advisory services.
- Section 2.11 "Date of Grant" means the date on which the grant of an Award is authorized by the Board or such later date as may be specified by the Board in such authorization.
- Section 2.12 "Disability" means the Participant is unable to continue employment by reason of any medically determinable physical or mental impairment which can be expected to result in death or can be expected to last for a continuous period of not less than 12 months. For purposes of this Plan, the determination of Disability shall be made in the sole and absolute discretion of the Board.
  - Section 2.13 "Eligible Employee" means any employee of the Company, a Subsidiary, or an Affiliated Entity as approved by the Board.
  - Section 2.14 "Eligible Director" means any member of the Board who is not an employee of the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliated Entity.
  - Section 2.15 "Exchange Act" means the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.
- Section 2.16 "Fair Market Value" means (A) during such time as the Common Stock is registered under Section 12 of the Exchange Act, the closing price of the Common Stock as reported by an established stock exchange or automated quotation system on the day for which such value is to be determined, or, if no sale of the Common Stock shall have been made on any such stock exchange or automated quotation system that day, on the next preceding day on which there was a sale of such Common Stock, or (B) during any such time as the Common Stock is not listed upon an established stock exchange or automated quotation system, the mean between dealer "bid" and "ask" prices of the Common Stock in the over-the-counter market on the day for which such value is to be determined, as reported by the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., or (C) during any such time as the Common Stock cannot be valued pursuant to (A) or (B) above, the fair market value shall be as determined by the Board considering all relevant information including, by example and not by limitation, the services of an independent appraiser.
  - Section 2.17 "Incentive Stock Option" means an Option within the meaning of Section 422 of the Code.
  - Section 2.18 "Nonqualified Stock Option" means an Option which is not an Incentive Stock Option.
- Section 2.19 "Option" means those options granted under Article V of the Plan and includes both Nonqualified Stock Options and Incentive Stock Options to purchase shares of Common Stock.
- Section 2.20 "Participant" means an Eligible Employee, a Consultant or an Eligible Director to whom an Award has been granted by the Board under the Plan.

- Section 2.21 "Performance Bonus" means the cash bonus which may be granted to Eligible Employees under Article IX of the Plan.
- Section 2.22 "Performance Units" means those monetary units that may be granted to Eligible Employees, Consultants or Eligible Directors pursuant to Article VIII hereof.
  - Section 2.23 "Plan" means this PharmAthene, Inc. (f/k/a Healthcare Acquisition Corp.) 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan.
  - Section 2.24 "Restricted Stock Award" means an Award granted to an Eligible Employee, Consultant or Eligible Director under Article VI of the Plan.
- Section 2.25 "Retirement" means the termination of an Eligible Employee's employment with the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliated Entity at any time on or after attaining age 65.
  - Section 2.26 "SAR" means a stock appreciation right granted to an Eligible Employee, Consultant or Eligible Director under Article VII of the Plan.
  - Section 2.27 "Subsidiary" shall have the same meaning set forth in Section 424 of the Code.

# ARTICLE III ADMINISTRATION

Section 3.1 Administration of the Plan by the Board. The Board shall administer the Plan. The Board may, by resolution, appoint a committee to administer the Plan and delegate its powers described under this Section 3.1 for purposes of Awards granted to Eligible Employees and Consultants.

Subject to the provisions of the Plan, the Board shall have exclusive power to:

- (a) Select Eligible Employees and Consultants to participate in the Plan.
- (b) Determine the time or times when Awards will be made to Eligible Employees or Consultants.
- (c) Determine the form of an Award, whether an Incentive Stock Option, Nonqualified Stock Option, Restricted Stock Award, SAR, Performance Unit or Performance Bonus, the number of shares of Common Stock or Performance Units subject to the Award, the amount and all the terms, conditions (including performance requirements), restrictions and/or limitations, if any, of an Award, including the time and conditions of exercise or vesting, and the terms of any Award Agreement, which may include the waiver or amendment of prior terms and conditions or acceleration or early vesting or payment of an Award under certain circumstances determined by the Board.
  - (d) Determine whether Awards will be granted singly or in combination.
  - (e) Accelerate the vesting, exercise or payment of an Award or the performance period of an Award.
- (f) Determine whether and to what extent a Performance Bonus may be deferred, either automatically or at the election of the Participant or the Board.
  - (g) Take any and all other action it deems necessary or advisable for the proper operation or administration of the Plan.

Section 3.2 Administration of Grants to Eligible Directors. The Board shall have the exclusive power to select Eligible Directors to participate in the Plan and to determine the number of Nonqualified Stock Options, Performance Units, SARs or shares of Restricted Stock awarded to Eligible Directors selected for participation. If the Board appoints a committee to administer the Plan,

it may delegate to the committee administration of all other aspects of the Awards made to Eligible Directors.

Section 3.3 Board to Make Rules and Interpret Plan. The Board in its sole discretion shall have the authority, subject to the provisions of the Plan, to establish, adopt, or revise such rules and regulations and to make all such determinations relating to the Plan, as it may deem necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan. The Board's interpretation of the Plan or any Awards and all decisions and determinations by the Board with respect to the Plan shall be final, binding, and conclusive on all parties.

Section 3.4 Section 162(m) Provisions. The Company intends for the Plan and the Awards made there under to qualify for the exception from Section 162(m) of the Code for "qualified performance based compensation" if it is determined by the Board that such qualification is necessary for an Award. Accordingly, the Board shall make determinations as to performance targets and all other applicable provisions of the Plan as necessary in order for the Plan and Awards made thereunder to satisfy the requirements of Section 162(m) of the Code.

#### ARTICLE IV GRANT OF AWARDS

Section 4.1 Grant of Awards. Awards granted under this Plan shall be subject to the following conditions:

- (a) Any shares of Common Stock related to Awards which terminate by expiration, forfeiture, cancellation or otherwise without the issuance of shares of Common Stock or are exchanged in the Board's discretion for Awards not involving Common Stock, shall be available again for grant under the Plan and shall not be counted against the shares authorized under Section 1.3.
- (b) Common Stock delivered by the Company in payment of an Award authorized under Articles V and VI of the Plan may be authorized and unissued Common Stock or Common Stock held in the treasury of the Company.
  - (c) The Board shall, in its sole discretion, determine the manner in which fractional shares arising under this Plan shall be treated.
  - (d) Separate certificates or a book-entry registration representing Common Stock shall be delivered to a Participant upon the exercise of any Option.
- (e) The Board shall be prohibited from canceling, reissuing or modifying Awards if such action will have the effect of repricing the Participant's Award.
  - (f) Eligible Directors may only be granted Nonqualified Stock Options, Restricted Stock Awards, SARs or Performance Units under this Plan.
  - (g) The maximum term of any Award shall be ten years.

#### ARTICLE V STOCK OPTIONS

Section 5.1 Grant of Options. The Board may, from time to time, subject to the provisions of the Plan and such other terms and conditions as it may determine, grant Options to Eligible Employees. These Options may be Incentive Stock Options or Nonqualified Stock Options, or a combination of both. The Board may, subject to the provisions of the Plan and such other terms and conditions as it may determine, grant Nonqualified Stock Options to Eligible Directors and Consultants. Each grant of an Option shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement executed by the Company and the Participant,

and shall contain such terms and conditions and be in such form as the Board may from time to time approve, subject to the requirements of Section 5.2.

Section 5.2 Conditions of Options. Each Option so granted shall be subject to the following conditions:

- (a) Exercise Price. As limited by Section 5.2(e) below, each Option shall state the exercise price which shall be set by the Board at the Date of Grant; provided, however, no Option shall be granted at an exercise price which is less than the Fair Market Value of the Common Stock on the Date of Grant.
- (b) Form of Payment. The exercise price of an Option may be paid (i) in cash or by check, bank draft or money order payable to the order of the Company; (ii) by delivering shares of Common Stock having a Fair Market Value on the date of payment equal to the amount of the exercise price, but only to the extent such exercise of an Option would not result in an adverse accounting charge to the Company for financial accounting purposes with respect to the shares used to pay the exercise price unless otherwise determined by the Board; or (iii) a combination of the foregoing. In addition to the foregoing, the Board may permit an Option granted under the Plan to be exercised by a broker-dealer acting on behalf of a Participant through procedures approved by the Board.
- (c) Exercise of Options. Options granted under the Plan shall be exercisable, in whole or in such installments and at such times, and shall expire at such time, as shall be provided by the Board in the Award Agreement. Exercise of an Option shall be by written notice to the Secretary of the Company at least two business days in advance of such exercise stating the election to exercise in the form and manner determined by the Board. Every share of Common Stock acquired through the exercise of an Option shall be deemed to be fully paid at the time of exercise and payment of the exercise price.
- (d) Other Terms and Conditions. Among other conditions that may be imposed by the Board, if deemed appropriate, are those relating to (i) the period or periods and the conditions of exercisability of any Option; (ii) the minimum periods during which Participants must be employed by the Company, its Subsidiaries, or an Affiliated Entity, or must hold Options before they may be exercised; (iii) the minimum periods during which shares acquired upon exercise must be held before sale or transfer shall be permitted; (iv) conditions under which such Options or shares may be subject to forfeiture; (v) the frequency of exercise or the minimum or maximum number of shares that may be acquired at any one time; (vi) the achievement by the Company of specified performance criteria; and (vii) non-compete and protection of business matters.
- (e) Special Restrictions Relating to Incentive Stock Options. Options issued in the form of Incentive Stock Options shall only be granted to Eligible Employees of the Company or a Subsidiary, and not to Eligible Employees of an Affiliated Entity unless such entity shall be considered as a "disregarded entity" under the Code and shall not be distinguished for federal tax purposes from the Company or the applicable Subsidiary.
- (f) Application of Funds. The proceeds received by the Company from the sale of Common Stock pursuant to Options will be used for general corporate purposes.
- (g) Stockholder Rights. No Participant shall have a right as a stockholder with respect to any share of Common Stock subject to an Option prior to purchase of such shares of Common Stock by exercise of the Option.

#### ARTICLE VI RESTRICTED STOCK AWARDS

Section 6.1 Grant of Restricted Stock Awards. The Board may, from time to time, subject to the provisions of the Plan and such other terms and conditions as it may determine, grant a Restricted Stock Award to Eligible Employees, Consultants or Eligible Directors. Restricted Stock Awards shall be awarded in such number and at such times during the term of the Plan as the Board shall determine. Each Restricted Stock Award shall be subject to an Award Agreement setting forth the terms of such Restricted Stock Award and may be evidenced in such manner as the Board deems appropriate, including, without limitation, a book-entry registration or issuance of a stock certificate or certificates.

Section 6.2 Conditions of Restricted Stock Awards. The grant of a Restricted Stock Award shall be subject to the following:

- (a) Restriction Period. Restricted Stock Awards granted to an Eligible Employee shall require the holder to remain in the employment of the Company, a Subsidiary, or an Affiliated Entity for a prescribed period. Restricted Stock Awards granted to Consultants or Eligible Directors shall require the holder to provide continued services to the Company for a period of time. These employment and service requirements are collectively referred to as a "Restriction Period". The Board or the Committee, as the case may be, shall determine the Restriction Period or Periods which shall apply to the shares of Common Stock covered by each Restricted Stock Award or portion thereof. In addition to any time vesting conditions determined by the Board or the Committee, as the case may be, Restricted Stock Awards may be subject to the achievement by the Company of specified performance criteria based upon the Company's achievement of all or any of the operational, financial or stock performance criteria set forth on Exhibit A annexed hereto, as may from time to time be established by the Board or the Committee, as the case may be. At the end of the Restriction Period, assuming the fulfillment of any other specified vesting conditions, the restrictions imposed by the Board or the Committee, as the case may be shall lapse with respect to the shares of Common Stock covered by the Restricted Stock Award or portion thereof. In addition to acceleration of vesting upon the occurrence of a Change of Control Event as provided in Section 11.5, the Board or the Committee, as the case may be, may, in its discretion, accelerate the vesting of a Restricted Stock Award in the case of the death, Disability or Retirement of the Participant who is an Eligible Employee or resignation of a Participant who is a Consultants or an Eligible Director.
- (b) Restrictions. The holder of a Restricted Stock Award may not sell, transfer, pledge, exchange, hypothecate, or otherwise dispose of the shares of Common Stock represented by the Restricted Stock Award during the applicable Restriction Period. The Board shall impose such other restrictions and conditions on any shares of Common Stock covered by a Restricted Stock Award as it may deem advisable including, without limitation, restrictions under applicable Federal or state securities laws, and may legend the certificates representing Restricted Stock to give appropriate notice of such restrictions.
- (c) Rights as Stockholders. During any Restriction Period, the Board may, in its discretion, grant to the holder of a Restricted Stock Award all or any of the rights of a stockholder with respect to the shares, including, but not by way of limitation, the right to vote such shares and to receive dividends. If any dividends or other distributions are paid in shares of Common Stock, all such shares shall be subject to the same restrictions on transferability as the shares of Restricted Stock with respect to which they were paid.

#### ARTICLE VII STOCK APPRECIATION RIGHTS

Section 7.1 Grant of SARs. The Board may from time to time, in its sole discretion, subject to the provisions of the Plan and subject to other terms and conditions as the Board may determine, grant a SAR to any Eligible Employee, Consultant or Eligible Director. SARs may be granted in tandem with an Option, in which event, the Participant has the right to elect to exercise either the SAR or the Option. Upon the Participant's election to exercise one of these Awards, the other tandem Award is automatically terminated. SARs may also be granted as an independent Award separate from an Option. Each grant of a SAR shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement executed by the Company and the Participant and shall contain such terms and conditions and be in such form as the Board may from time to time approve, subject to the requirements of the Plan. The exercise price of the SAR shall not be less than the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the Date of Grant of the SAR.

Section 7.2 Exercise and Payment. SARs granted under the Plan shall be exercisable in whole or in installments and at such times as shall be provided by the Board in the Award Agreement. Exercise of a SAR shall be by written notice to the Secretary of the Company at least two business days in advance of such exercise. The amount payable with respect to each SAR shall be equal in value to the excess, if any, of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the exercise date over the exercise price of the SAR. Payment of amounts attributable to a SAR shall be made in shares of Common Stock.

Section 7.3 Restrictions. In the event a SAR is granted in tandem with an Incentive Stock Option, the Board shall subject the SAR to restrictions necessary to ensure satisfaction of the requirements under Section 422 of the Code. In the case of a SAR granted in tandem with an Incentive Stock Option to an Eligible Employee who owns more than 10% of the combined voting power of the Company or its Subsidiaries on the date of such grant, the amount payable with respect to each SAR shall be equal in value to the applicable percentage of the excess, if any, of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the Exercise date over the exercise price of the SAR, which exercise price shall not be less than 110% of the Fair Market Value of a share of Common Stock on the date the SAR is granted.

# ARTICLE VIII PERFORMANCE UNITS

Section 8.1 Grant of Awards. The Board may, from time to time, subject to the provisions of the Plan and such other terms and conditions as it may determine, grant Performance Units to Eligible Employees, Consultants and Eligible Directors. Each Award of Performance Units shall be evidenced by an Award Agreement executed by the Company and the Participant, and shall contain such terms and conditions and be in such form as the Board may from time to time approve, subject to the requirements of Section 8.2.

Section 8.2 Conditions of Awards. Each Award of Performance Units shall be subject to the following conditions:

- (a) Establishment of Award Terms. Each Award shall state the target, maximum and minimum value of each Performance Unit payable upon the achievement of performance goals.
- (b) Achievement of Performance Goals. The Board shall establish performance targets for each Award for a period of no less than a year based upon some or all of the operational, financial or performance criteria listed in Exhibit A attached. The Board shall also establish such other terms and conditions as it deems appropriate to such Award. The Award may be paid out in cash or Common Stock as determined in the sole discretion of the Board.

## ARTICLE IX PERFORMANCE BONUS

Section 9.1 Grant of Performance Bonus. The Board may from time to time, subject to the provisions of the Plan and such other terms and conditions as the Board may determine, grant a Performance Bonus to certain Eligible Employees selected for participation. The Board will determine the amount that may be earned as a Performance Bonus in any period of one year or more upon the achievement of a performance target established by the Board. The Board shall select the applicable performance target(s) for each period in which a Performance Bonus is awarded. The performance target shall be based upon all or some of the operational, financial or performance criteria more specifically listed in Exhibit A attached.

Section 9.2 Payment of Performance Bonus. In order for any Participant to be entitled to payment of a Performance Bonus, the applicable performance target(s) established by the Board must first be obtained or exceeded. Payment of a Performance Bonus shall be made within 60 days of the Board's certification that the performance target(s) has been achieved unless the Participant has previously elected to defer payment pursuant to a nonqualified deferred compensation plan adopted by the Company. Payment of a Performance Bonus may be made in either cash or Common Stock as determined in the sole discretion of the Board.

# ARTICLE X STOCK ADJUSTMENTS

In the event that the shares of Common Stock, as constituted on the effective date of the Plan, shall be changed into or exchanged for a different number or kind of shares of stock or other securities of the Company or of another corporation (whether by reason of merger, consolidation, recapitalization, reclassification, stock split, spin-off, combination of shares or otherwise), or if the number of such shares of Common Stock shall be increased through the payment of a stock dividend, or a dividend on the shares of Common Stock, or if rights or warrants to purchase securities of the Company shall be issued to holders of all outstanding Common Stock, then there shall be substituted for or added to each share available under and subject to the Plan, and each share theretofore appropriated under the Plan, the number and kind of shares of stock or other securities into which each outstanding share of Common Stock shall be so changed or for which each such share shall be exchanged or to which each such share shall be entitled, as the case may be, on a fair and equivalent basis in accordance with the applicable provisions of Section 424 of the Code; provided, however, with respect to Options, in no such event will such adjustment result in a modification of any Option as defined in Section 424(h) of the Code. In the event there shall be any other change in the number or kind of the outstanding shares of Common Stock, or any stock or other securities into which the Common Stock shall have been changed or for which it shall have been exchanged, then if the Board shall, in its sole discretion, determine that such change equitably requires an adjustment in the shares available under and subject to the Plan, or in any Award, theretofore granted, such adjustments shall be made in accordance with such determination, except that no adjustment of the number of shares of Common Stock available under the Plan or to which any Award relates that would otherwise be required shall be made unless and until such adjustment either by itself or with other adjustments not previously made would require an increase or decrease of at least 1% in the number of shares of Common Stock available under the Plan or to which any Award relates immediately prior to the making of such adjustment (the "Minimum Adjustment"). Any adjustment representing a change of less than such minimum amount shall be carried forward and made as soon as such adjustment together with other adjustments required by this Article X and not previously made would result in a Minimum Adjustment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, any adjustment required by this Article X which otherwise would not result in a Minimum Adjustment shall be made with respect to shares of Common Stock relating to any Award immediately prior to exercise, payment or settlement of such Award. No fractional shares of Common Stock or units of other securities shall be issued pursuant to any such adjustment, and any fractions resulting from any such adjustment shall be eliminated in each case by rounding downward to the nearest whole share.

### ARTICLE XI GENERAL

Section 11.1 Amendment or Termination of Plan. The Board may alter, suspend or terminate the Plan at any time provided, however, that it may not, without stockholder approval, adopt any amendment which would (i) increase the aggregate number of shares of Common Stock available under the Plan (except by operation of Article X), (ii) materially modify the requirements as to eligibility for participation in the Plan, or (iii) materially increase the benefits to Participants provided by the Plan.

Section 11.2 Termination of Employment; Termination of Service. If an Eligible Employee's employment with the Company, a Subsidiary or an Affiliated Entity terminates as a result of death, Disability or Retirement, the Eligible Employee (or personal representative in the case of death) shall be entitled to purchase all or any part of the shares subject to any (i) vested Incentive Stock Option for a period of up to three months from such date of termination (one year in the case of death or Disability (as defined above) in lieu of the three-month period), and (ii) vested Nonqualified Stock Option during the remaining term of the Option. If an Eligible Employee's employment terminates for any other reason, the Eligible Employee shall be entitled to purchase all or any part of the shares subject to any vested Option for a period of up to three months from such date of termination. In no event shall any Option be exercisable past the term of the Option. The Board may, in its sole discretion, accelerate the vesting of unvested Options in the event of termination of employment of any Participant.

In the event a Consultant ceases to provide services to the Company or an Eligible Director terminates service as a director of the Company, the unvested portion of any Award shall be forfeited unless otherwise accelerated pursuant to the terms of the Eligible Director's Award Agreement or by the Board. The Consultant or Eligible Director shall have a period of three years following the date he ceases to provide consulting services or ceases to be a director, as applicable, to exercise any Nonqualified Stock Options which are otherwise exercisable on his date of termination of service.

Section 11.3 Limited Transferability—Options. The Board may, in its discretion, authorize all or a portion of the Nonqualified Stock Options granted under this Plan to be on terms which permit transfer by the Participant to (i) the ex-spouse of the Participant pursuant to the terms of a domestic relations order, (ii) the spouse, children or grandchildren of the Participant ("Immediate Family Members"), (iii) a trust or trusts for the exclusive benefit of such Immediate Family Members, or (iv) a partnership or limited liability company in which such Immediate Family Members are the only partners or members. In addition, there may be no consideration for any such transfer. The Award Agreement pursuant to which such Nonqualified Stock Options are granted expressly provide for transferability in a manner consistent with this paragraph. Subsequent transfers of transferred Nonqualified Stock Options shall be prohibited except as set forth below in this Section 11.3. Following transfer, any such Nonqualified Stock Options shall continue to be subject to the same terms and conditions as were applicable immediately prior to transfer, provided that for purposes of Section 11.2 hereof the term "Participant" shall be deemed to refer to the transferee. The events of termination of employment of Section 11.2 hereof shall continue to be applied with respect to the original Participant, following which the Nonqualified Stock Options shall be exercisable by the transferee only to the extent, and for the periods specified in Section 11.2 hereof. No transfer pursuant to this Section 11.3 shall be effective to bind the Company unless the Company shall have been furnished with written notice of such transfer together with such other documents regarding the transfer as the Board shall request. With the exception of a transfer in compliance with the foregoing provisions of this Section 11.3, all other types of Awards authorized under this Plan shall be transferable only by will or

the laws of descent and distribution; however, no such transfer shall be effective to bind the Company unless the Board has been furnished with written notice of such transfer and an authenticated copy of the will and/or such other evidence as the Board may deem necessary to establish the validity of the transfer and the acceptance by the transferee of the terms and conditions of such Award.

Section 11.4 Withholding Taxes. Unless otherwise paid by the Participant, the Company, its Subsidiaries or any of its Affiliated Entities shall be entitled to deduct from any payment under the Plan, regardless of the form of such payment, the amount of all applicable income and employment taxes required by law to be withheld with respect to such payment or may require the Participant to pay to it such tax prior to and as a condition of the making of such payment. In accordance with any applicable administrative guidelines it establishes, the Board may allow a Participant to pay the amount of taxes required by law to be withheld from an Award by (i) directing the Company to withhold from any payment of the Award a number of shares of Common Stock having a Fair Market Value on the date of payment equal to the amount of the required withholding taxes or (ii) delivering to the Company previously owned shares of Common Stock having a Fair Market Value on the date of payment equal to the amount of the required withholding taxes. However, any payment made by the Participant pursuant to either of the foregoing clauses (i) or (ii) shall not be permitted if it would result in an adverse accounting charge with respect to such shares used to pay such taxes unless otherwise approved by the Board.

*Section 11.5 Change of Control*. Notwithstanding any other provision in this Plan to the contrary, in the event of a Change of Control Event, the Board shall have the discretion to determine whether and to what extent to accelerate the vesting, exercise or payment of an Award.

Section 11.6 Amendments to Awards. Subject to the limitations of Article IV, such as the prohibition on repricing of Options, the Board may at any time unilaterally amend the terms of any Award Agreement, whether or not presently exercisable or vested, to the extent it deems appropriate. However, amendments which are adverse to the Participant shall require the Participant's consent.

Section 11.7 Registration; Regulatory Approval. Following approval of the Plan by the stockholders of the Company as provided in Section 1.2 of the Plan, the Board, in its sole discretion, may determine to file with the Securities and Exchange Commission and keep continuously effective, a Registration Statement on Form S-8 with respect to shares of Common Stock subject to Awards hereunder. Notwithstanding anything contained in this Plan to the contrary, the Company shall have no obligation to issue shares of Common Stock under this Plan prior to the obtaining of any approval from, or satisfaction of any waiting period or other condition imposed by, any governmental agency which the Board shall, in its sole discretion, determine to be necessary or advisable.

Section 11.8 Right to Continued Employment. Participation in the Plan shall not give any Eligible Employee any right to remain in the employ of the Company, any Subsidiary, or any Affiliated Entity. The Company or, in the case of employment with a Subsidiary or an Affiliated Entity, the Subsidiary or Affiliated Entity reserves the right to terminate any Eligible Employee at any time. Further, the adoption of this Plan shall not be deemed to give any Eligible Employee or any other individual any right to be selected as a Participant or to be granted an Award.

Section 11.9 Reliance on Reports. Each member of the Board and each member of the Board shall be fully justified in relying or acting in good faith upon any report made by the independent public accountants of the Company and its Subsidiaries and upon any other information furnished in connection with the Plan by any person or persons other than himself or herself. In no event shall any person who is or shall have been a member of the Board be liable for any determination made or other action taken or any omission to act in reliance upon any such report or information or for any action taken, including the furnishing of information, or failure to act, if in good faith.

Section 11.10 Construction. Masculine pronouns and other words of masculine gender shall refer to both men and women. The titles and headings of the sections in the Plan are for the convenience of reference only, and in the event of any conflict, the text of the Plan, rather than such titles or headings, shall control.

Section 11.11 Governing Law. The Plan shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Delaware except as superseded by applicable Federal law.

Section 11.12 Other Laws. The Board may refuse to issue or transfer any shares of Common Stock or other consideration under an Award if, acting in its sole discretion, it determines that the issuance or transfer of such shares or such other consideration might violate any applicable law or regulation or entitle the Company to recover the same under Section 16(b) of the Exchange Act, and any payment tendered to the Company by a Participant, other holder or beneficiary in connection with the exercise of such Award shall be promptly refunded to the relevant Participant, holder or beneficiary.

Section 11.13 No Trust or Fund Created. Neither the Plan nor an Award shall create or be construed to create a trust or separate fund of any kind or a fiduciary relationship between the Company and a Participant or any other person. To the extent that a Participant acquires the right to receive payments from the Company pursuant to an Award, such right shall be no greater than the right of any general unsecured creditor of the Company.

Section 11.14 Conformance to Section 409A of the Code. To the extent that the Committee determines that any Award granted under the Plan is subject to Section 409A of the Code, the Award Agreement evidencing such Award shall incorporate the terms and conditions required by Section 409A of the Code. To the extent applicable, the Plan and Award Agreements shall be interpreted in accordance with Section 409A of the Code and Department of Treasury regulations and other interpretive guidance issued thereunder, including without limitation any such regulations or other guidance that may be issued after the Effective Date. Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the contrary, in the event that the Committee determines that any Award may be subject to Section 409A of the Code and related Department of Treasury guidance, the Committee may adopt such amendments to the Plan and the applicable Award Agreement or adopt other policies and procedures (including amendments, policies and procedures with retroactive effect), or take any other actions, that the Committee determines are necessary or appropriate to (i) exempt the Award from Section 409A of the Code or (ii) comply with the requirements of Section 409A of the Code and related Department of Treasury guidance.

### EXHIBIT A

### 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan Performance Criteria

Operational Criteria may include:
Reserve additions/replacements
Finding & development costs
Production volume
Production Costs
Financial Criteria may include:
Earnings(net income, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization ("EBITDA")
Earnings per share:
Cash flow
Operating income
General and Administrative Expenses
Debt to equity ratio
Debt to cash flow
Debt to EBITDA
EBITDA to Interest
Return on Assets
Return on Equity
Return on Invested Capital
Profit returns/margins
Midstream margins
Stock Performance Criteria:
Stock price appreciation

Total stockholder return

Relative stock price performance

PharmAthene, Inc. One Park Place, Suite 450 Annapolis, MD 21401

PROXY

#### For The Annual Meeting To Be Held June 13, 2008

The undersigned hereby constitutes and appoints John Pappajohn and David P. Wright, and each of them, attorneys and agents, with full power of substitution, to vote as proxy all the shares of Common Stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, of PharmAthene, Inc. (the "Company") standing in the name of the undersigned at the Annual Meeting of Stockholders of the Company to be held at the offices of The Bear Stearns Companies, Inc. located at 383 Madison Avenue, New York, New York 10179 at 10:00 a.m., New York time, on Friday, June 13, 2008, and at any adjournment or postponement thereof, in accordance with the instructions noted below, and with discretionary authority with respect to such other matters as may properly come before such meeting or any adjournment or postponement thereof. Receipt of notice of such meeting and the Proxy Statement therefor dated May 14, 2008 is hereby acknowledged.

This Proxy will be voted in accordance with the Stockholder's specifications hereon. In the absence of any such specification, this Proxy will be voted:

- · "FOR" the proposal to amend our Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation to increase from seven to eight the maximum number of directors that may serve on the Board of Directors;
- "FOR" each nominee for director;
- \* "FOR" the proposal to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as independent registered accounting firm for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008; and
- \*FOR" the proposal to amend the 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2007 Plan") to increase the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan from 3,500,000 shares to 4,600,000 shares and to add an evergreen provision pursuant to which the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan will increase automatically in each year beginning in 2009 according to certain limits set forth in the 2007 Plan.

If any other business is presented at the Annual Meeting, this proxy will be voted by the above-named proxies at the direction of a majority of the Board of Directors. At the present time, the Board of Directors knows of no other business to be presented at the Annual Meeting.

(Continued and to be signed and dated on other side)

#### PROXY

The undersigned hereby revokes any proxies heretofore given and directs said attorneys to act or vote as follows:

Proposal to amend serve on the Board of		icate of Incorporation to increase from se	even t	o eight the maximum	number	of directors	that may	
2. Election of directo	DIS:					Please ma your votes this		X
1. Election of lirectors:	01 John Pappajohn	02 David P. Wright	0	Vote FOR all	0	Vote WITH	_	e
irrectors:	03 Joel McCleary	04 John Gill		(except as marked)		for all nom		
		05 Derace L. Schaffer, M.D.						
	sted, except that authority to vot ) of the nominee(s) in the box pro	e withheld for the following nominee(s	):					
3. Proposal to ratify the appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as independent registered accounting firm for the Company for the fiscal year ending December 31, 2008.			0	For o	Agains	st o	Abstair	1

Against

Abstain

For

Please complete and date this proxy and return it promptly in the enclosed postage-prepaid envelope.

4. Proposal to amend the 2007 Long-Term Incentive Compensation Plan (the "2007 Plan") to

increase the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan from 3,500,000 shares to 4,600,000 shares and to add an evergreen provision pursuant to which the number of shares subject to the 2007 Plan will increase automatically in each year beginning in 2009 according to certain limits

Address change? Mark box Indicate changes beside:

set forth in the 2007 Plan.

COMPANY ID:					
PROXY NUMBE	R:				
ACCOUNT NUM	IBER:				
SIGN HERE EXA	CTLY AS NAME(S) APPEAR(S) ON T	HE CARD			
Signature					
Signature					
Date					
NOTE: When shar	es are held by joint tenants, both should s a corporation, please sign in full corpora	ign. When signing as attorney, tru			
8% Convertible N	Notes issued August 3, 2007				
PharmAthene, In One Park Place, S					
Annapolis, MD 21					PROXY
	For Th	e Annual Meeting To Be Held J	une 13,	2008	
substitution, to vot at the Annual Mee York, New York 10 instructions noted or postponement th	rsigned hereby constitutes and appoints Jose as proxy all 8% Convertible Notes issue ting of Stockholders of the Company to b 20179 at 10:00 a.m., New York time, on Frobelow, and with discretionary authority whereof. Receipt of notice of such meeting the voted in accordance with the Noteholder.	ed August 3, 2007 of PharmAther he held at the offices of The Bear Stiday, June 13, 2008, and at any actifit respect to such other matters a and the Proxy Statement therefor	ne, Inc. ( Stearns ( djournme as may p dated M	the "Company") standing Companies, Inc. located at ent or postponement there roperly come before such (ay 14, 2008 is hereby ack	in the name of the undersigned 383 Madison Avenue, New of, in accordance with the meeting or any adjournment mowledged.
· "FOI	R" James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D., Elizab	eth Czerepak and Steven St. Pe	eter as D	irectors of the Company.	,
The unde	ersigned hereby revokes any proxies he	retofore given and directs said a	attorney	s to act or vote as follows	s:
1. Election of directors:	01 James H. Cavanaugh, Ph.D.	02 Elizabeth Czerepak	0	Vote FOR all nominees listed	o Vote WITHHOLD AUTHORITY to vote
	03 Steven St. Peter			(except as marked)	for all nominees listed
	s listed, except that authority to vote wi e the number(s) of the nominee(s) in the				
Please complete a	nd date this proxy and return it promp	otly in the enclosed postage-prep	paid env	elope.	
THIS PROXY IS	SOLICITED ON BEHALF OF THE H	HOLDERS OF THE COMPAN	Y'S 8%	CONVERTIBLE NOTE	ES ISSUED AUGUST 3, 2007
SIGN HERE EXA	CTLY AS NAME(S) APPEAR(S) ON T	HE CARD			
Signature					
Signature					
Date					
	es are held by joint tenants, both should s a corporation, please sign in full corpora	ign. When signing as attorney, tru			

### QuickLinks

General Information and Questions and Answers about the Proxy Materials and Voting PROPOSAL 1
PROPOSAL 2 Election of Directors
Noteholder Director Nominees

Corporate Governance; Board of Directors

<u>Audit Committee Report(1)</u>

Executives and Executive Compensation
Summary Compensation Table

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

PROPOSAL 3 Ratification of Independent Auditors

PROPOSAL 4

Other Information

Appendix A

Appendix B